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Letter of transmittal

Dear: Shareholders and Customers,

it is a pleasure to present to vou the Bank's Annual Report for the year 2007, The report containg the
anntial accounts, major events, achievements and funire business prospecs,

Yours fairhfully,

s

Mariin Mmari
Chairman of the Board of Directors
CRDE Bank

Vision
The leading Bank in Tanzania

To be the leading bank, which is customer need
dnven with competitive retumn o shareholders.

Mission
Quality Banking Service

To provide quality and competitive financial
services with a strong focus on retail banking
and customized corporate and institutional ser-
vices while ensuring eonfidence and trust from
stakeholders

Our Values
Accountability

Courtesy
Promptness

Commitment

Decisiveness

Professional Integrity

Cost Consciousmess
Knowledge
Performance Driven

Responsiveness
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LM, Svlivia Temm
Member Mjumbe

Bw. Joseph Machange Bw. Kai Kristoffersen
Mentber Mjumibe Member Mjumbe
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Board of Directors

Bi. Joyee Nvanza
Member Miumibe

Bw, Boniface Muhegi Bw. Bede Lyimo
Member Mijumbe Member Miumbe
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Board of Directors

Bw, Ally Laay
Member Mjumbe

Bi. Lydia Joachim B, Jovee Luhanga
Member Mjwmnbe Member Mjwmnbe
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Board of Directors

T — T

D, Charles Kimei Bw. Jens Qe Pedersen
Managing Director Depury Managing Direciar
Mburugzenzi Mrendaji Naibu Mlurupenzi Miendaji
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Chairman s

Statement

Success

*  Pre-tax profit 1s up 34 percent to
Tshs 51.7 ballion fromm Tshs 384 hallion
in 200,

* Operating [ncome 15 up 36 percent to
Tshs 127 billion frevm Tshs 94 ballion

i 200,

The Bank recorded grosih of 28 percent in
deposits o Tshs 1,013 billion from Tshs 792
ballion in 2006, Lending grew by 45 percent
i Tshs 588 ballion from Tshs 406 ballion in
20006, The Bank's tofal assets increased by
27 percent o Tshs 1,143 billion from Tshs
B985 ballion in 2006,

Dividends

The Board will recommend o the Annual
General Meeting & dividend of Tshs |7 per
share. Total appropriation o dividends will
be Tshs 4.2 hillion, up from 2 1hllion in

2006,

Business Development

The Bank™ prionty is sustmning growth of
relail banking business through Small and
Medium Enterprises (SMEs) and Microfi-
nance initiatives. The Bank will as well keep
om maintaiming the achievements made in
corporate banking services, The Bank wit-
nessed sigmificant growth in business vol-
umnes in all key business segments.




The members of the
board of directors
continued to give me
strong support for
which I am most
thankful. In another
vear in which the Bank
l."iJI E'Z"lFI f Vel '1:'2'{'11[ ey
exceptional
performance,
it is with great
satisfaction that I thank
our esteemed
customers for
continuing to trust the
bank to deliver
superior banking
services to them.

We have continued to
enjoy the lovalty and

support of our share-

holders and Branch
Advisory

Committee members,

for which I am most
grateful.

@ CROE Bk Anuaad Riepord 2007

Prospects for 2008

The Tanzaman economic performance 15 expected o re-
miatin favorable in 2008, economic growth expected at 7.7
percent and inflation expected to be contained below 10
percent. The agricultural, construction, and manufacturing
sectors pefformance 18 expected o improve, good business
environment also expected to continue. Year 2008 will be
the first year for implementation of ambitious five vears
Business Strategy (2008-2012) of CRDE Bank aiming at
upgrading the level of banking products and services as
well as expanding the network of branches and other de-
livery channel in order o sustain competition in a progres-
sively competitive market,

The expected improvement in economic performance cou-
pled with well diversified income sources of the bank and
implementation of the new Business Strategy gives me a
confidence to believe that the Bank will deliver another
good performance i year 20008,

Changes in the Board

The Bank’s Memorandum and Aricles of Association
require one third of directors elected by Annual General
Meeting to retire annually. | would like to repont chang-
g5 In the Board duning the vear At the annual General
Meeting held on 23rd June 2007 Mr Ally Laay, Mr Abed
Mwasajone and Mr. Boniface Muhegi retired. All of them
offered for re-election, Mr. Boniface Muhegi was duly re-
elected. Mrs Jovee Mg'walu Myanza and Dr. Stergomena
L. Tax were elected for the first ime. | welcome Mrs Joyvee
Mg walu Myanza to the Board. Mr Ally Laay and Mr
Abed Mwazsajone served the board for a period of 3 vears
and & vears respectively. [ wish o acknowledge their valu-
able contributions to the Board over the peniod they have
served and wish them well in their future endeavors,



Acknowledgement

The members of the board of directors continued to give me strong support for which I am most thank-
ful. In anather vear in which the Bank delivered an exceptional performance, it is with great satisfaction
that [ thank our esteemed customers for continuing to trust the bank to deliver superior banking services
o them, We have continued to enjov the loyalty and support of our shareholders and Branch Advisory
Committee members, for which | am most grateful,

The continuous growth and performance of the bank was to a large extent achieved through the hard
work and commitment of the Management and staff, [ thank them for the remarkable achievements of
the Bank. Finally, | wish to acknowledge the support of the Government, the Bank of Tanzania, and all
the Bank’'s stakeholders, | am optinmistic that the Bank will make even greater achievements in the more
challenging vears ahead.

i

Martm Mman
Charrmom of e Bogard
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Managing Director s

It is with utmost pleasure that I present to you

vear 2(057. Our solid results during the year
orienfed sirategies in the Refail and Corpor

growth that Tanzania economy is experienci

The real Gross Domestic Product (GDF) growth in
N7 is estimated at 7.1% compared o 6.2% a vear
agn, underpinned by the growth in mining and quar-
rying, hotels, tourism and manufactuning as well as
improved climatie conditions which led o favourable
developments in agriculture and better power supply.

The agricultural sector is the largest contributor o the
country’s GDF by contributing over 25%. High pric-
es of food items and fuel contributed to a significant
inflationary pressure with annual inflation averaging
7.8%

Customer deposits leaped by 28% 1o an unprecedent-
ed Tshs 1,013 billion, compared to Tshs 792 billion in
the previous year making CRDB Bank the top bank in
deposits. Pretax profit grew by 34% o Tshs 51.7 bil-
lion compared  Tshs 38.4 billion in 2006,

Met profit increased from Tshs 26.5 billion in 2006 1o
Tshs 37.3 billion in 2007 On the other hand, our total
assels increased by 27% o reach Tshs 1,143 ballion
from Tshs 898 billion a yvear ago. Lending grew by
45% w0 Tshs 588 ballion compared to last vear's fig-
ure of Tshs 406 billion. The Bank™s contribution o the
government ax income also increased o Tshs 14.4
ballion from Tshs 11.9 billion in 2006
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Report

1 the Bank's strong performance in the

were the product of the Bank'’s growth

ate Banking sectors supported by the

.
2.




Our ongoing
efforts are focused
towards enhancing

performance,
upgrading
systems and
streamlining
our wide range
of products and
services.
We will continue

to develop our network,

maintaining an edge in

product innovation
and provide our
Zrowing
client base with
alternative banking
channels and
improved customer

service.

In & market where competition n the banking sector 15
fierce, customer service becomes an important differen-
tiator, In the vear under review, the Bank implemented
different strafegies Lo improve the customer service our
customers enpoy. In order to provide our products and
services Lo a wider segment of the population, we fur-
ther expanded our branch network to add 5 and 19 new
branches and ATMs respectively and refurbnshed as well
as relocated 5 existing branches. Providing a better and
more convement banking experience was our primary
focus behind reflurbishment and relocation of our exist-

ing branches.

The first ever Depository ATMs in Tanzama “Easy De-
posit” services were launched by the Bank in 2007, The
reaults achieved so far are positive and encouraging. In
2008, we plan to install more Depository ATMs 1o cater

for the growing demand for this important service.

Our ongoing effons are focused towards enhancing per-
formance, upgrading systems and streamlimng our wide
range of products and services. We will continue o de-
velop our network, maintaining an edge in product inno-
vation and provide our growing client base with alterna-

tive banking channels and improved customer service.

2007 was a successful year and [ would hike 1o extend
my appreciation o the Board of Directors For their sup-
poat, our chients and all our stakeholders for their con-
fidence in us. Many thanks are also due to the manage-
ment team and our valuable stall whose dedication and

commitment have been crucial o our achievements this

X

Charles 5. Kimei {Dr)
Managing [irector

Year
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Retail Banking

Distribution Network

The Bank comtinued its growth and expansion strategy in 2007, strengthening its distribution channels
with the addition of ntore branches and ATMs. Year 2007 saw the addition of 5 new branches, which
are Azikiwe Premier (the branch also hosting the Bank's Prenuer Banking Centre) and Mbagala (Dar es
Salaam), Mkwawa (Innga), University of Dodoma {Dodoma) and Kilombero (Morogoro).

The Bank relocated the following branches to new premises: Singida, Kahama, Vijana (Dar es Salaam),
SUA (Morogoro) and Kigoma The relocated branches provide banking services in improved and more
spacions environments. Nineteen (19) new ATMs were installed (5 offsite in Sinza, Chang’ ombe < Dar
es Salaam College of Education, Tabata, Temeke and Kariakoo). Two ATMs began 1o offer depository
services at Azikiwe and Kijitonyama branches (Dar es Salaam). Thus, the Bank closed the year with 44
branches and 71 ATMs.

Card Business

Year 20T saw tremendous increase in the use of TemboCards as a means of payment by big institu-
tions, businesses and individuals. Tanzania Revenue Authonty which in 2006 began using TemboCard
paviment system at only two border custom olfices, namely Namanga (Arisha) and Holili (Kilimanjaro)
rolled out this mode of payment to all its border erossing points which include Sivari { Tarime- Musoma,
Horohoro (Tanga), Kasumuolu (Eyela = Mbeya) and Mutukula (Kagera).

Tanzania Mational Parks (TANAPA ) and Coca Cola also joined the ranks of cash free payment this vear.
TAMAPA uses TemboCard payment at Megongongare and Momela gates (Arsha National Park) and
Marangu, Machame, Mweka and Lonoros: gates (Kilimanjaro National Park). At the close of the vear
7 institutions were using TemboCard pavments system. Other companies that enjoy cash free payments
system are Tanzama Brewenes Limited, Konvagi, Yodacom and Tanzania Cigarette Company. More
cormpanies and institutions are in the process of joining this mode of payment.

Premier Banking

The Premier Banking services, which used to be offered at Tower Branch were relocated o a dedicated
Fremier Centre at the Benjamin Mkapa Towers in Dar es Salaam. High value customers are offered ex-
clusive value added services that include extended banking hours, choice of being served in their offices
of homes aind utility payments services. Highly personalized services offered by skilled and dedicated
stall are a Kev feature of this service. The Premier Centre offers excepdional convenience and comfbort.
The Bank 15 set to grow its business with this high and middle class segment.

SME

The Bank's SME business experienced strong growth in 2007, With the completion of the roll-out proj-
ect, the SME team focused on growing the business volume. They were able (o increase the bidii loan
portfodio from Tshs 7.6 billion in 2006 to Tshs 30.2 billion in year 2007, The programme of improving
business knowledge and skills of the SME customers continued to be an essential component of the busi-
ness. There was an increase in the number of customers who participated in this traiming/seminars from
SBE customers in 2006 o 550 customers.
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Corporate Banking

Corporate Banking department provides transactional and financing solutions to corporate and instito-
tional clients, The services offered are lending, deposit taking, trade finance and a wide range of transac-
tional banking solutions through dedicated Eelationship Managers. Relationship Managers form long-
term relationships with clients and buld capabilites for understanding client businesses and financial
requirements to be able to offer taillor made solutions.

Aggressive direct marketing was emploved to grow the corporate portfolio, The gross loan portfolio
growth of over 45% shows the tremendous success of this effort, The portfolio grew from Tshs 406 bil -
lion to Tshs 599 billion in 2007,

The Bank organizes cotton, colfee and cashewnut fom where lending issues are discussed and problems
resolved, In 20077, the Bank recrgamzed the cotton and coffee fora 1o make the respective fora more ef -
fective, The outcome of this effort is expected to be better performance of the agneultural subsegment
of corporate banking,

The use of the warehouse receipt svstem in cashewnut marketing assures farmers of better prices. In
2007, the Bank adopted this svstem, which shall help the orderly growth of cashew production. Poor
crop prces discourage investments in crop development and the Bank is obviously pleased o help farm-
ers earn more from their investments.

Cofton prices in the world market were very unstable dunng 2007, This was a big challenge o local
cotton traders who had low pnced supply contracts, The Bank is looking into potential hedging products
that can effectively address the risks inherent in agncultural commodity markets,

Loans
The gross loan portfolio was distributed by sectors as shown in the table below:

Sector H? ks

Tishes 01 % Tshes 0y %
Pubdic sector - - QAL IRL 3
Apgricultare fishing, ferestry & hunting 126,972,012 21 O, A 3 24
Finance, insurance and business services T4 337 656 12 2T 140964 3
Iining & quarmving 3,673,552 1 3,533,959 -
Manufacturing ROAT, 08 13 G, 486, 351 15
Rieal estate and construction 21,497 536 4 255749739
Tramsport and commumication L5087 458 4 25579739 i
Trads and commeros T9208, 404 13 25 4BRATI 13
Tourizm, hedels & restanrmans 19,991,007 3 49 135,00 3
Electricity, gns and waier 6T 418,369 1 62715916 15
Personal 60, 295 967 11 30208, 040 7
Oiher 34 173,958 [ 3458, 246 1
Tirtal £09,7 26,107 1015 A, 152,485 (LIRS
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Agriculture took a substantial portion of the portfolio with 21% of all loans issued followed by manufac-
turing, trade and commerce each representing 13% of all loans issued.

The foces for the year ahead will continue o be the offenng of customized financial solutions that best
suit our clients” needs and that are competitively pnced, as well as strengthening relationships through
Tora and visits,

Marketing and Research

The department is involved with Advertising, Public Relations, Direct Marketing and events, branding
and sponsorship, o promote the Bank's products and improve corporate image. The department also
deals with product development and research.

Aggressive media strategies were used (o generate op of mind awareness with a number of mass media
companies for the Bank's corporate brand building, product'service promotion and launches, and new
and relocated branches,

Several major marketing imitiatives were aken im 2007 targeted at building the Bank™s brand and im-
proving customer service. A major drive o improve customer service was given a firm foundation by the
development of a clear customer seryice stralegy.

The Bank ivested heavily in in-house and outsourced resources in a landmark study that was the basis
of the customer service strategy. The strategy culs across the board and involves the Bank's systems, pro-
cesses and procedures. At vear-end it had been mainstreamed in the Bank's 2008-20012 business strafegy.
Customers will soon note the impact of this major dove o give them world class customer service.

Marketing was realigned (o be more responsive to the vanous geographical markets that the Bank op-
erates in. Marketing units were given specific geographical markets in which they work closely with
branches 1o use local knowledge of market needs and most effective local marketing channels. This new
stance gave remendows support o branches and immediate positive results were oblained.

The Bank’s strategy o grow ils business includes fast organic growth through growing business volume
from existing distnbution channels and expanding its distnbution network. In 2007 Marketing increased
the effort it puts in studyving the potential of different markets in order to dentify suitable locations for
new branches and ATMs. By vear-end it had already charted out its footprints in the next 2 vears. As a
result of fast growth there was a business case to cut down on the time needed to make a new branch
profitable. Marketing improved the process of developing business in new branches, nght from pre-
launch, launch and post-launch marketing and sales efforts. The new approach which 15 proving effec-
tive focuses on strong publicity, intensive direct marketing and =ales efforts,
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CRDEB Bank has always believed in participating in vanous community activities and exhibitions, and
used such platforms wavail the remendous marketing potential these events offer. The Sabasaba Trade
Fair and customer forums are the perfect avenues for advertising opportunities especially for brand
building as it helps in creating a larger customer-base. Sponsorships and donations have also provided
extensive markeling opportunities.

Im 20008, the department plans to introduce new delivery channels, introduce new products and pnice
products competitively. A call centre has also been planned and it is going 0 be upoin the coming year to
respond o our chents” enguities and meet their demand for prompt and efficient service.

Microfinance

As CRDB Bank celebrated its first decade of operating as a private bank in 2006, the Bank had not only
become one of the leading banks in terms of share and profits in Tanzania, but was also leading in @king
services o ordinary people previously lacking access (o finance. The Bank uwses a “wholesale™ model
working through well established local microfinance institutions (MEPTs) that include SACCOS.

Within the vear, the Bank managed to recruit 118 microfinance pariners. By the end of 2007 the Bank
was working with 345 partner MFIs compared to 227 at 315t December 2006, A5 at 31 December 2007
the balance on the total loans extended by the Bank to 268 MFEIs stood at Tshs 7223 billion. Their total
deposits with CRDE Bank were Tshs 10.7 billion.

In Movember 2007, CRDB Bank signed Moll with the Bank of Tanzania to facilitate the provision of 150
phase of Mational Economic Empowerment Loans (Uwezeshaji loans). The Bank was given Tshs 5.25
ballion as guarantee fund for loans o be issued. As at 3 150 December 2007 the Bank had disbursed Tshs
16.3 billion o 134 SACCOS as per terms of the Moll. The Bank will take part in the second phase of
Uwezeshaji loans Tollowing the successiul implementation of the first phase.

Risk

A nisk department was established in late 2006 (o spearhead the Bank’s nsk management effort In 2007
it was pre-occupied with organizing the nsk management Munction of the Bank. 15 first accomplishment
was a risk management function framework. This included nsk identification, measurement, moniloring
and management. Other components were nsk policy, adequate procedures and a reporting system 1o

semior management and the board,
The practice of risk management using the latest method is very new in Tanzania. Creating awareness
across the board was therefore important. A stafl awareness programme was established and helped o

sensitize stafl on key nsks in their job areas,

The Bank’s assets and liabilities are managed by the Assets and Liabilities Commttee (ALCO). The ma-
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jor nisks addressed by ALCO are ligudity, interest rate and exchange rate risks. These risks are inherent
in treasury operations. In 2007 a middle office unit was embedded in the risk department o effectively
control treasury exposure o the above risks. The goal of successful risk management is a sustainable
business that offers investors sustainable returns and protects other stakeholders, especially customers
whao thereby are confident that their deposits and business relationship with the Bank are safe.

People

Cur stafl with the support of banking infrastructure deliver the propositions we ofTer our customers.
They live our brand, values and culture. However, a reality check is essential o enable steering in the
conrect direction al a pace that does not strain the organization bevond its current capabilities.

A Service Dnver Ranking Research was done in 2007, [t used stafl focus groups o oblain frank staff
views that shall be used in 2008 to resolve hiccups and strengthen the performance capacity of the Bank.
The Bank marks to the banking industry 15 stafl remuneration and other terms of service. In fact it is
widely accepted that it is the emplover of choice in Tanzania, This 15 part of its stall strategy and it is
prowd that this is in keeping with its brand.

In maintaining its emplover of choice status, the Bank in 2007 incorporated new imitiatives in s scheme
of service. It was very well received by stall and boosted their morale. In the same spirit, the Bank
sustained and improved events where family sentiments were boosted. On the same note, the Bank in-
terwove its beliels in the lives of stafl by mainstreaming HIV/AIDS awareness in all imduction training
and other stafl gathenings.

Treasury

Year 2007 was charactenized by unfavourable market conditions which included weakening of the US
Dollar against the Tanzamian shilling by almost Tshs 200 and monigage cnsis in the United States that led
tey imterest rate cuts. This decreased the vield on Bank’s investments denominated in US Dollars. Mev-
ertheless the Bank introduced new products and managed (o expand its business and customer base for
Treasury products that contributed 305 of the Bank™s income. Foreign exchange income grew Irom Tshs
A6 billiom in 2006 @ Tshs 108 billion in 2007 while income from money market products remained
stable at Tshs 27 billion.
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Treasury also pariicipated actively in the interbank market mcreasing its coniribution to the financial
market development. In year 2007, CRDB Bank was a major player in interbank funding providing Tan-
ranian Shillings liquidity to other banks al competitive rates.

Other Income

Other income includes fee based income, profit on disposal of propenties and equipments, and amortiza-
tion of grants income all of which contnbuted to 22% of the Bank's total operating income {excluding
foreign exchange trading gain).

Microfinance Business

The number of parinering institutions {MFElLs) under Micro Finance programme increased by 118 Micro-
finance partners from 227 at the end of 2006 to 345 at end of 2007, As at 31 December 2007 the balance
on the total loans extended by the Bank to 268 MFEls stood at Tshs 72.3 billien. Their total deposits with
CRDB Bank were Tshs 10.7 billion

Card Business

As at 31 December 2007 the Bank had issued a total of 71,760 TemboCard Visa and 271,849 normal
TemboCards and distnbuted 300 point of sales (POS) devices to merchants. TemboCard Visa merchants
accepting both Visa creditd Debit cards at POS were at 92 with a total of 150 POS terminals rolled out,
while normal TemboCands merchants were 500 in December 2007

Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) Business

The number of branches at which the SME was rolled out increased from 2000 25, A total of 950 custom-
ers attended toolkit training compared to 588 1n the previous year. Total loan portfolio in the 25 branches
amounted to Tshs 3002 billion as at 31 December 2007 compared to Tshs 7.6 billion as of 31 December
2004,

Future Developmenis

This is the last vear of the Bank's 2003-2007 Strategic Business plan. The bank has prepared a new
five-year business plan whose implementation will start in January 2008, In this plan, the bank will con-
centrate its efforts towards setting a strong base in addressing the challenges observed in the review of
the previons strategy. Future focus will continue to be on retail banking by offering quality products and
services through better use of e-banking delivery channels and enhancements to the Bank's technologi-
cal platform. The Bank will continue to offer customized banking services (o corporate and institutional
custoamers as well as take measures to improve risk management. T he challenge ahead is building capac-
ity and infrastructure for provision of services to small and medium customers.

Financial Results

Profit before tax for year 2007 compared to vear 2006 increased by 34% from Tshs 38 .4 billion in 2006
o 51.7 billion in 2007, Met profit for the vear transferred to the revenue reserve increased from T Shs
26.5 billion to Tshs 373 billion, which 15 an increase of 41%. As in vear 2006, the increase in income
resulted from increased volumes in loans and overdrafts, treasury investments, and lee based transac-
Hons.

ﬂ CROE Bk Awnuaad Repors 307



Financial Highlights

Particulars 0T Tshes Bn I Tshes Bn % Change
Financial income B9, 145 6,451 3%
Financial expenses 17,007 13 B30 23%
Financial spresd T2,13B 52612 I
Cither income 37 B9T 17,030 405
Oiperaling expenses &5, 103 39IIR 40%
Pre-tax prodit 51,703 38,446 34%
Met prodit 37325 5,48 A%

Financial Income
The Bank’s financial income was Tshs 8915 billion in 2007, an increase of 34% when compared o 2006
results. Interest income on loans and advances accounted for 63% of the wtal financial income.

Financial Expenses
Financial expenses increased by 239 to Tshs 17.0 billion from Tshs 1383 billion. Interest on time de-
posits contributed 62% to total financial expenses.

Oiher Income
Other income reached Tshs 3789 billion, a 40% increase from 2006, Other income was mostly neceived
from commission and fees.

Financial Spread
Financial spread increased Teom Tshs 52,61 billion in 2006 to Tshs 72,14 billion in 2007, This is attrib-
uted to the margin between the average lending rates and borrowing rates,

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses included stafl and admimstrative expenses. For vear 2007, operaling expenses stood
al Tshs 55,10 ballion against Tshs 3923 ballion recorded in the previous year.

Pre-tax Praofit
Profit before tax was Tshs 51.70 billion in the vear 2007 compared o Tshs 3845 billion in 2006, This is
an increase of 34%.

Net Profit
Met profit increased by 41%, [rom Tshs 2648 billion in 2006 1o Tshs 37.33 billion in 2007,

Revenue Reserve

The Bank's revenuve reserve was Tshe 79632 754000 of which Tshs 4,204 664 400 was proposed divi-
dends. In 2006, revenne reserve was Tshs 56,525 684 000 of which Tshs 2,102,332 200 was proposed
dividends.
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Report of the Directors For the Year
Ended 31 December 2007

The Directors are pleased o present their report and the audited financial statements of the CRDB Bank
Fle for the vear ended on 31 December 20007,

Principal Activities and Business Review
The Bank is licensed under the Banking and Financial Institutions Act (2006) and its principal activity is
the provision of banking services. Dunng the year, the Bank changed 1ts name 0 CRDE Bank Fle.

The Bank 15 one of the major financial services prowviders in Tanzania and it is engaged in corporate and
retail banking, including microfinance services. The Bank offers a full range of commercial banking
services as well as share registration and insurance agency services. The Bank operates through a net-
work of 53 branches (including agencies) and in partnership with 345 microfinance institutions located
throughout Mainland Tanzania. During the year, 5 branches were refurbished, 5 new branches opened,
19 AT Ms installed, making a total of operating ATMs o be 73,

Depaosits

In 20007, customer deposits grew by 285, As at 31 December 2006, total deposits were Tshs 792 hillion
while at 31 December 2007 deposits had reached at Tsha 1,003 billion. The grovwth was attnbuted mainly
o the Bank’s brand, which continwed to be strengthened by ongoing branch refurbishment, opening of

new outlets and new innovative products,

Lending

The net loan portfolio rose by 45%: from Tshs 406 billion as at 31 December 2006 @0 Tshs S88 billion at
31 December 2007, The agncultumal sector continued to dominate, accounting for over 21% of the port-
fodio, followed by manufacturing 13% trade and commerce 13%, financial intermedianes 1259, clectnc-
ity gas & water and personal loans both 1%, real estate & construction and transport & communication
cach 45, tourism, hotels and restaurants 3%, mining & guarry 1% and other sectors6%. Interest income
om overdralts and term loans was Tshs 53823 billion, up from Tshs 34.7 billion in year 2006 representing
46% of the total Bank's operating income.

Treasury

In order o provide our chents with better services and products, the bank reviewed aperations in the
Treasury Department. This led o internal restructuring of department that was implemented owards
the end of the vear 2007 This puts the Bank at the top in the market in terms of product offering in the
maoney and foreign exchange markets.

Ferformance wise, fore gn exchange income was Tshs 1007 billion in 2007 compared o Tshs 6.4 billion
in 2006, this contnbuted 8% of the Bank™s wotal operating income. Money markel activities also contrib-
uted significantly to the interest income that the Bank earned in 2007, interest income on placements,
treasury bills and bonds contributed 24% of the Bank™s todal operating income.
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Treasury also participated actively in the interbank market increasing its contribution o the financial
market development. In year 2007, CRDE Bank was a major player in interbank funding providing Tan-
ranian Shillings liquidity to other banks at competitive rates.

Other Income

Other income includes fee based income, profit on disposal of properties and equipments, and amortiza-
tien of grants income all of which contributed to 22% of the Bank’s total operating income {excluding
foreign exchange trading gain).

Microfinance Business

The number of parnering institutions (MFEIs) under Micro Finance programme increased by 118 Micro-
finance partners from 227 at the end of 2006 10 345 at end of 2007, As at 31 December 2007 the balance
o the total loans extended by the Bank to 268 MFEIs stood at Tshs 72.3 billion. Their total deposits with
CEDB Bank were Tshs 10,7 billion

Card Business

As at 31 December 2007 the Bank had issued a total of 71,760 TemboCard Visa and 271,849 normal
TemboCards and distnbuted 300 point of sales (POS) devices to merchants. TemboCard Visa merchants
accepting both Visa credit’ Debit cards at POS were at 92 with a total of 150 POS terminals rolled out,
while normal TemboCards mernchants were 500 in Decembser 2007,

Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) Business

The number of branches at which the SME was rolled out increased [rom 2000 25, A total of 950 custom-
ers attended toolkil training compared to 388 in the previous vear. Total loan portfolio in the 25 branches
amounted to Tshs 3002 billion as at 31 December 2007 compared to Tshs 7.6 billion as of 31 December
20,

Future Developments

This 1% the last vear of the Bank's 2003-2007 Strategic Business plan. The bank has prepared a new
five-year business plan whose implementation will start in January 2008, [n this plan, the bank will con-
centrate its efforts towards setting a strong base in addressing the challenges observed in the review of
the previous strategy. Future focus will continue 1o be on retail banking by offening quality products and
services through better use of e-banking delivery channels and enhancements to the Bank's technologi-
cal platform. The Bank will continee to offer customized banking services (o corporate and institutional
customers as well as take measures to improve risk management. T he challenge ahead 15 building capac-
iy and infrastructure for provision of services to small and medium customers.

Financial Results

Profit before tax for year 2007 compared to vear 2006 increased by 34% rom Tshs 38 4 billion in 2006
1 51.7 billion in 2007, Met profit for the vear transferred to the revenue reserve increased from T Shs
20,5 billion to Tshs 373 billion, which 15 an increase of 41%. As in vear 2006, the increase in income
resulted from increased volumes in loans and overdrafts, treasury investments, and lee based transac-
nons.
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Dividends
The Directors will recommend to the Annual General Meeting a dividend payvment of Tshs 17 per share.
The total amount of dividend to be recommended will be Tshs 4,204,664, 400

Share Capital and Reserves

During the year, there was a change in the issued and paid up capital of the Bank. Bonus Shares were is-
sned at the rate of one share for every share held thus increasing the capital of the Bank from 123 666,600
shares to 247,333,200 issued and fully paid up ordinary shares at the end of the vear,

Directors
The following directors served during the vear:

5™ Name Position Mationality
1. Mr. Martin Mman Chairman Tanzanian
2 Dr. Svlvia Temu Member Tanzanian
3 M. Joyee Luhanga Member Tanzanian
4, Mrs. Lydia Joachim Member Tanzanian
i M. Joseph Machange Member Tanzanian
i Mr. Kan Knstoffersen Member Danish

7. Mr. Bede Lyimo Member Tanzanian
. Mr. Boniface Muhegi Member Tanzanian
9, Mr. Abed Mwasajone Member, up to 23 June 2007 Tanzanian
10, Mr Ally Laay Member, up to 23 June 2007 Tanzanian
11, Mrs Joyee Mg'walu Nyanza Member, from 24 August 2007 Tanzanian
12, Dr Charles Kimei Managing Director —ex officio Tanzanian
13, Mr Jens Ole Pedersen Deputy Managing Director —ex officio Danish

At the Annual General Meeting held on 23 June 2007, Mr. Ally Laay; Mr Abed Mwasajone and Mr,
Boniface Muhegi from shareholders with less than 1% of the Bank's Share capital retired, All stood for
re-glection and Mr, Boniface Muhegi was re-elected, Mrs, Jovee Ng'walu Myanza and Dr, Stergomena
L. Tax were elected by the group of sharcholders with less than 1% of the Bank's Share Capital
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Directors Interest in the Issued Share Capital
Directors’ interest in the shares of the Bank for the vear 2007 15 summanzed below:

MName 7 2l
o, ol shiares % N, ol shiares ki

W Martin Mmari 168, CHH 004 54,000 4
Ms Joyee Luhanga 6,00} (.00 3,000 (001
Mre. Lydia Joschim 1, S0k 004 53,250 L4
M Abed Mwasajons 83,6000 034 0180 (.0534
M Ally Laay T, 003 36,000 3
Bdr. Bonifsce Muhegi 178,320 007 2, 160 007
Lo, Charles Kimei 4 B} 02 24,500 002
s Joyce Myanzn 44, () iz NiA NiA
M Joseph hMachanpe 13, 5000 00 6,750 o

Remuneration of Directors

All Directors except the 2 ex-officio members were non-executive. Eemuneration for non executive
Directors was approved by the last Annual General Meeting. Total fees paid for the vear were Tshs
174, 506,000,

Significant Shareholding

The Bank's Articles of Association recogmizes three categones of sharcholders, namely shareholders
holding more than 105 of the total paid up shares, shareholders holding between 1% and 10% of the
todal pand up shares; and shareholders holding less than 1%, As at the end of the vear, the shareholding
of these three groups was as follows;

Sharehalding group P, il shares K

2007 2 27 200
Mdore than 1075 T4 L, 200 FTEL, 1 30,0 300
1'% b 1% STA24 200 28,662, 10 133 33
Less than 1% 115 404, 800 55,552, 40 46,7 46,7
Total AT 333,200 1236460, 6K IL IR 10,00
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Shareholders holding 1% or more are histed hereunder:

T il
Sharchalder M ol shares T of inlal shares ol shares. T ol intal shares
AN Investment Fupd T4, 104, 200 0 7052, 100 30,0
Famstatal Pension Fand 13, 00K0, I 6,1 7500, (A} L3
IFF Limited 13, 5500, (0 S 6975 (5 S
INIC o, 750, 17 3 3TN0 27
SHIRECL 3,250,000 1.3 1525 N 1.3
Eagem Cooperative Linion 4,500, 1.8 P 21
Western Tobaceo Cop, Lnion 36000, (X 1.5 2250 N 1.8
Hans Macha 3,000, (00 1.2 100 (N 1.2
Limdi Dev”p Corpomticn 2770, 11 1.3 500N 11
CWG Investent Limited 2674, 2000 11 1337, 10 1.1
LAFF 2 KD 1.0k 1, 20K (A 1.0k
Tatal 131928 400 E5M i, 714, 2060 3.9

Related Party Transactions

One of the Board members, Mr. Bede Lyimo, has a personal loan with the bank of ST 10,000 and out-
standing loan balance of USD 5,112 as at 317122007 A former board member Mr Ally Laay has a loan
of Tshs 30 million and an outstanding balance of Tshs 44.5 million as at 3107122007, Dr. Charles Kimei,
the Managing Director, has a loan of Tshs 60 million and an outstanding balance of Tshs 58.4 million as
at 31 December 20007,

Emplovee Welfare

As al December 2007 the Bank had 1,153 employvees out of whom 712 (62%:) were males and 441 (385%)
females. The annual growth in staffing was 14% as compared with 175 in the vear 2006, This s in Keep-
ing with the overall growth of the Bank and its outlets. AU management level 23% were female.

The Bank is an equal opportunity emplover. It gives equal access o employment opporiunitics and en-
sures that the best available person is appoinied o any given position free from discrimination of any
kind and without regard to factors like gender, marital status, tribe, religion and disability which does not
impair ability o discharge dutics,

The Bank focused on activities that created more awareness on HIV/ATDS among stall members by
providing them with updated information on HIV/AIDS with an emphasis on the preventive stralegics
and education against the pandemic. The Bank has integrated HIV/ATDS awareness programs into the
induction programs and other training programs conducted by the Bank. Unlike previous vears, in year
2007 the Bank stalf participated in the voluntary testing national campaign that was launched by the
President of the United Republic of Tanzania, His Excellency Jakaya Mrisho Kikwete.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Bank made a substantial donation o various projects in the areas of health, youth and education.
These include money for purchasing building materials for health centers in Chunya and Same Districts;
financing support o anti-female genital mutilaton efforts in Mam Region. The Bank also contnbuted o
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secondary school building projects in various parts of the country which included Tshs 10 million for the
Dar es Salaam education development project. The University of Dar es Salaam Entreprencurship Centre
also received Tshs £.5 million from CEDE Bank for organizing a business plan wrile-up competition.

Auditors
The Annual General Meeting held on 23 June 2007 appointed Deloitte & Touche as anditors of the Bank
for the vear under review.

Acknowledgement

The Board wishes to thank the management and all emplovees who in the face of adversty have shown
exemplary courage, digmity, solidanty and excellent performance dunng the vear. The Board also wishes
Loy express its appreciation © the Customers, Shareholders and Branch Advisory Committee Members
of the Bank for their fidelity, trust and support dunng the period without which these resulis would not
have been achieved,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

—
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CHAIRMAN HEECTOR
14" March, 208 14™ March, 2008
DATE DATE
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Directors Statement
on Corporate Governance

The Directors consider corporate governance as a key to good performance of the Bank. In view of this,
the Directors continued to sirengthen good governance system by reviewing policies in the areas of the
Board and Board committees” activities and general management of the Bank Board gwidelines and
committees charters were reviewed durning the yvear as well as policies of the Bank

Board Structure

The Board comprises of 12 Directors out of whom 10 are non-executive, the Managing Director and
Deputy Managing Director are ex officio members, A non-executive chairman, who is elected by direc-
tors every vear, leads the Board, of the 10 non-executive Directors, DANIDA Investment Fund appoints
three Directors,

Board Meetings
The Board held nine meetings per vear. Cne of the meetings 15 devoled to the review and development
of the Bank's business strategy. The committees meet a mimimum of four limes a year

Committees

As at 31 December 2007 the Board had three committees namely the Audit Committee, the Governance
and Risk Management Committee and the Credit Committee, The activities of the committees are gov-
erned by the Committee charters approved by the Board

Audit Committee

Mame Position

Mr. A Mwasajone Chairperson up (o June 2007
Dr. 5, Temu Chairperson from June 2007
Mr. A Laay Member up (o June 2007
Mr. K. Kristoffersen Member

Mr. I, Machange Member

Mr. B. Lyimo Member from October 2007
Mrs, J. Myanz Member from October 2007

The Committee held five meetings during the vear. The External Auditor was invited to and attended two
meetings. The Managing Director, Deputy Managing Director, Director of Finance and the Director of
Internal Audit participated in the meetings.
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Governance and Risk Management Committee

MName Position

Mr. M, Mman Chairperson

Mr. K. Knstoffersen Member

Mr. B, Muhegi Member

Dr. 5. Temu Member

M= I Luhanga Member up to Cctober 20007
Mr. B, Lyvimo Member up to October 2007
Mr. I, Machange Member from Cotober 20007

The Committee met five times during the yvear. The Managing Director, the Deputy Managing Director,
Director of Treasury and Director of Risk participated in the meetings

Credit Committee

MName Position

Mr. M, Mman Chairperson

Mrs. L. Joachim Member

M= I Luhanga Member

Mr A, Laay Member up to June 2007
Mr. B, Lyvimo Member up to October 20007
Mrs. I, Myanza Member from October 2007
Mr. B, Muhegi Member from October 20077

The committee met eleven times during the vear. The Managing Director, the Deputy Managing Director
and the Director of Credit participated in the meetings,

Appointment of Directors

The Board reviews applications from candidates for board membership in conformity with the Banking
and Financial [nstitution Act 2006 and the Bank’s Articles of Association, Every member owning 10%
of the issued and fully paid up share capital of the Bank shall be entitled to appoint one director, Con-
sequently DANIDA Investment Fund appoints three directors, Members owning between 15 and 10%
of the issued and fully paid up shares of the Bank shall jointly be entitled to elect one director for every
104% of shares held provided that any pant of 10°% which does not by itsell add up to a whole 10¢% shall
not be entitled to elect a director, Sharcholders having shares less than 1% of the 1sseed and Tully paid
up share capital of the Bank shall jountly elect one director and additionally one director for every 10%
of shares held.

Indwction Training

The Directors undergo an onentation program to expose them to the activities of the Bank and gover-
nance matters. Directors’ development and training is tailored to meet individual requirements
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The Directors atftended training during the year on incentive schemes for stafl, succession planning in
banks, investment policies in banks, the ratings process, cards fraud, customer service strategy, black
economic empowerment, shareholders in banks based on black economic empowerment, small and me-
dium enlerprises programs.

Directors were also exposed 0 new developments that had impact on their fidueiary obligations, Inter-
natiomal Financial Beporting Standards and Bank’s operations.

Directors Performance Evaluation

The Board charter requires that the Directors evaluate group performance cach vear. Each commilles
also conducts its evaluation yearly. Arcas of weakness are noted and results are used for performance
improvement in the coming year.

Shareholders Relations

The Bank issued two newsletiers to sharcholders providing them information on the Bank's performance,
financial perfformance, frequently asked guestions and products and services offered by the Bank. Branch
shareholders meetings were held in April 2007 during which the Bank and branch performance was the
magor agenda. Branch Advisory Committee Members met four times during the vear. [ssues or recom-
mendations raised in the meetings were presented (o the Board for consideration and fecdback. Board
resclutions on the issues were sent back to the Branch Advisory Committee for information.

A seminar covenng the proposed amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Bank; Microfinance products and the Capital market and Secunties Authonty was held on the eve of the
Annual General Meeting. In addition, a seminar was conducted in varous regions on rading and listing
at DSE.

Relationship With Auditors
The Audit Committee and the Board held meetings with the Externmal Auditors to discuss terms of en-

gagement of the Auditors and other vanous 1ssues.

Annual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting was held on 23 June 2007 in Arusha during which the standing agenda as pro-
vided in the Articles of Association was presented and transacted. Amendments to the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Bank were passed at the same meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
_—

i ]
#
CHAIEMAN HNEECTOR
14" March, 2008 14" March, 2008
DATE DATE
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Statement of the Directors Responsibilities

The Companies Act 2002 requires Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial vear which
ive o true and fair view of the state of alfairs of the Bank as at the end of the financial vear and of the
operating results of the Bank for that year. 1t also requires the Directors o ensure that the Bank keeps
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position for
the Bank. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and Fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibality includes: designing,
implementing and maimtaiming internal comtrols relevant w the preparation and fair presentation of fi-
nancial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and
applving appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared us-
ing appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Com-
panies Act 2002, The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and far view
of the state of the financial affairs of the Bank and of its operating results. The Directors further accept
responsibility For the maimtenance of accounting records which may be relied upon in the preparation of
financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal control,

Mothing has come to the attention of the Directors o indicate that the Bank will not remain a going con-
cern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

-n."-'_____
t L]
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
14" March, 2008 14™ March, 2008
DATE DATE
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Report of the independent auditors to
the members of CRDB Bank Plc

We have audited the financial statements of CRDB Bank Ple set out om pages 67 o 105 which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash
flowy statement for the year then ended, wgether with the summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes, and have oblained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and beliel, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Respective responsibilities of divectors and auditors

The bank’s directors are responsible For the preparation and fair presentation of these financial state-
menis in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the Tanzani-
an Companies Act 2002, This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
contrel relevant o the preparation and far presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due o frawd or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. Our responsibility 15 o express

an opimion on these financial statements based on our awdit.

Basis af opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intermnational Standards on Auditing. Those standards re-
quire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable as-
surance a5 0 whether the financial statements are fmee from material misstalement.

An andit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment and include an assessment of
the nsks of matenial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o fraond or error

In making those nsk assessments, we considered internal controls relevant o the entity’s preparation
and lair presentation of the financial statements in order @ design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also ineludes evaluating the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by directors, as well as evaluating the overall presenta-

tiom of the financial statements.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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Income statement for the year

ended 31 I?ecember: 2007 o
Taarifa ya Mapato na Matumizi

Mote

10
11

12

20(d)

14

2007 2006
Tshs ‘000 Tshs ‘000
89,145,140 66,451,081
fl?.,‘.'l_ﬂ?.lm {1 EM
72,137,993 52 611,602
26,606,796 19,767,624
(95,667) (122,613)
26,511,129 19,645,011
10,732,681 6,632,903
653,339 751
110,035,142 79,641,146
(55,103,029) (39,228,079)
—(3.220.084)  _ (1967,332)
51,703,029 38,445,735
(14,378 000) (11.961,741)

37,325,020 26,483,904
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Balance sheet

as at 31 December, 2007

Note 2007 26
Thus 00 Tl M)

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Bank of Tanzania 15 169 410,061 09,797 300
Degposits and balances with other banks 16 189 B3R 922 175485 322
Government securities 17 120 427 633 163,714,860
Orther securitics 18 6,373 468 8381 405
Avgilable for sale investments 19 - 528,188
Loans and sdvances 0 S8 246,820 205,771 642
Oither nssets 21 47 480 343 31,914,186
Leased premises refurbishment 2 2820634 1,623,135
Intangible assets 23 T14 698 1021291
Property and 24 14 B 84 9,469 38T
Mon current asseds held for sale 25 3an 9407
Prepaid operating leasca 26 40E,146 -
Taxation recoverable 30 072 -
Deferred tax asset 35 LI48.773 386426
TOTAL ASSETS L142 660 366 B8, 302,938
LIABILITIES
Customer deposils 1) 1,013,331 303 791,530,729
Deposits and balances due o other banks ez 1 1,739,610 6318250
Orher Habilities 2 20 Ak 541 27,107,171
Taxation payable 30 - 339253
Subordinated loan capital 31 2,016,000 2016000
FLACF grants 32 192,368 477 242
DANIDA grant 33 141,796 1,108 582
RFSF grant o 173250 =
TOTAL LIABILITIES L1038 040,968 H28.897 227
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share capital 36 24,733 320 12 366 660
Revenue reserve 79632754 56,525 hE4
Statutory reserve 262324 313 367
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 104 628 398 G AN5T1L

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS L1342 669366 B8, 936
The financial staterments on pages 67 io mwww%ﬁmmunmﬂm

nwd_ru_h.i-hnhdl'hy
‘“*'1

Mr. Martin Mmari Drﬂallnxlmu M. Joyee Luhanga Mr Boniface Muhegi
Chalrman Managing Director Diirector Director
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Cash flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December, 2007

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from/{used in) operations
Taxation paid

Met cash generated{used in) from operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of quoted shares

Proceeds on disposal of quoted shares
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible asscts

Acquisition of leasehold land

Proceeds on disposal of equipment
Drividends received

Refurbishiment costs

Met cash uzed in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid

Met cash wsed in financing activities
Net imcreasef{decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
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Mate

38{a)

38(b)

2007 2006
Tshs “000 Tshs i)
82 286,461 (5,440,025)

(16,081,651} (12,147,074)
i, 204 780 (17,587,099
- {616,008

521,493 105,966
{8.223,297) (4,097.972)
[94,226) {275,862
(383 B66) B}
98,080 135,700
32,000 65,227
{2,533,112) (1,235,499
{10,584,935) (5,018440)
(2,013,034} (1.505.907)
{2.003,034) (1,805, MK
573 606,08 (25,311,446)
244,257,352 269,568,698
207 864,060 244257252




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

CRIDB Bank PLA (the Bank) 15 a public limited company incorporated in the United Eepublic of Tanzama under the Compa-
ke Act 2002, and regulated by the Bank of Tamzania under the Banking and Faancial Institutions Act 2006, The prinei pal
activities of the Company are described in page 2 of these financial stalements

The Bank prepares its financial statements uider International Financial Eeporting Standards (IFRS).

2. ADOFTION OF THE NEW AND THE REVISED STANDARDS

2.1 Standards and interpretations clfective in the current period
In the current year, the Bank has adopted [FRS 7- Financial Instruments: Dhisclosures which 1s effective for annual penods
beginming on or after | Janwary 2007, and the consequential smendments b 1AS |- Presentation of Financial Statements.

The impact of the adoption of [FRS 7 has been (o expand the disclosures provided in these inancial statements regarding the
Bank's financial instruments, and that of the changes in [A% | has been the disclosure of the Bank's management of capital
podicies as provided in note &

Four Interpretations isswed by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commi e are effective For the curment
period. These are: IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under TAS 2% Financial Reporting in Hyperintlationary
Economies; IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2; [FRIC 9 Ressses=ment of Embedded Derivatives; and IFRIC 10 Intenim Financial Re-
porting and Impaimment. The adoption of these Interpretations has not led to any changes in the Bank's accounting policies.

2.2 Early adophion of Standards and Interpretations
In addition, the Company has clecled o adopt the revisions of [AS 23 - Borrowang Costs (elfective for accounting penods
bemnning on or after | January 2009 in advance of it= effechve dale.

The revision= to LAS 23 have had no impact on the Bank's accounting policies. The pnnapal change to the Standard, which
was to climinate the previously available option (o expense all borrowing costs when incurred, has no impact on these finan-
cial statements because the Bank does not have barrowings to finance qualifving psseis.

2.3 Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet ellective
Al the date of suthonzation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue bt not
yei effechve:

* 1AS | on changes in the presentation of the financial statements

* IFES & on Operating Segments

= IFRIC 11 on Group and Treasury Share Transachions.

= IFRIC 12 on Service Concession Arrangement=

= IFRIC 13-1A8 18 Revenue: Customer Loyally Programs

» IFRIC 14-1AS 19 Employee benefits: Efect of Minimum Funding Bequirements on Asset Ceiling.

The dircctors anticipate that all the sbove interpretations and standard will be adopted when they become cffective, and that
the ndoption of those interpretations and o standard will have ro material impact on the finesncial statements of the Bank.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal aceounting policies adopted are set out Below:,

Basis of preparation
The Bank prepares its financial statements under the historical cost convention, modified o inelude the revaluation of certain
financial instruments.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS requites the use of certain eritical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumpltions and estimates are significant to the con-
solidated financial statements are disclosed in Mote <

Foreign currency translation

{a) Functional and presentation curmency
Ttems included in these Anancial gatements are measured uging the currency of the primary econoimie environment in which
the Bank aperates {“the funciional currency”).

The financial statements are presented in Tanzania shillings, which is the Bank’s functicnal and presentation currency.

(b Transactions and balances

Foreign currency ransactions are translated into Tanzania shillings using the exchange rates prevaling at the dates of the
transactions. onetary assets and labilities denomineted in foreign curencies at the reporing date are translated o Tanzama
shilling= using the rate of exchange prevailing at that date. The resullant exchange gains and losses are recogmised in the
income stplement.

Taxation
Ineoumie tax expense represents the sum of te current taxation and the deferred taxation.

Current taxation 1= provided on the basis of the results for the year, as shown in the financial statements, adjusted in accor-
danee wath tax legslation.

Dieferred tax is provided, using the liability methed, for all temporary dilferences ansing between the tax bases of assets and
lishalities and their carmying amounts in the inancial statements. Cumently enacted ax mies are used o determine defermed
lax.

A deferred tax asset is reeognized 1o the extent that it is probable that future laxeble profits will be available against which

the unused tax credits can be ublized. Deferred tax pssels are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no lenger probable that the related tax bencfit will be realized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following calegones: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans
and recesvables; held-to-maturi ty investments; and available-for-sale financial assets. Management delermines the classifica-
tion of it= investments al imitial recognition

(a} Financial assets at Far value through prol'it or [oss

This category has two sub-categories: financial sesets held for trading, and those designated ot fair value through probit or loss
al inception. A financial asset i= classified as held for rading if it 15 acquired or incurred principally for the purpose af selling
or repurchasing in the pear term or if it s part of o portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed (oeether and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of shori-term profit-taking. Denvatives are also categorised as held far
trading.

CGranns and losses prising from changes in the (ar value of derivatives that are managed in conjunction with designated finan-
cial as=ct= or financial liabilities are included in ‘net income from financial instruments designated at fair valoe.

(b} Loans, advences, and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial sssets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an sctive
market, other than: {a) those that the entity intends @0 sell immediately or in the short term, which are classified &= held for
trading, and those that the entity upoen mitel recoenition designates as ot Car valee through profit or loss; (b) those that the
entity upon initial recognition designates as available (o sale; or () those for which the holder may not recover substantially
all of its initial nvestments, other than because of eredil detenoration.

(¢} Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-matunity investments are non-denivabive financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Bank's management has the positive intention and ability to hold o maturity. If the Bank were to sell other than an
insigni ficant amount of held-to-matunty assets, the entire eategory would be reclassified as available (o sale.

Covernment securnities comprise treasury hills and treasury bonds, which are debt secunitics issued by the CGovernment af
Tanzania. Treasury balls and bonds are classihed = beld to matunty and are stated at amortised cost.

(dy Available-for-sale financial assels

Availablefor-=ale assets are financial assets that are not {a) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, (h) loans,
advances and recervables, or {c) financial assets held o matunty. Available-for-sale investments are intended o be held for
an indefinile period of time, which may be sold in response o needs (o liguidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates
o ety prices.

Fegular-way purchases and sales of financis] assets at fmr value through prafit or loss, held to matunty and svailable for sale
are recognised on trade-date — the date on which the Bank commits 1o purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are intially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carmed at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carmed at fur value through profit and loss are imatially recognised at far valwe, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.

Financial assets are derceognised when the rights to receive cash flows (rom the financial assets have expired or where the

Bank has transferred substantially all nsks snd rewards of ownership. Financial liabilives are derecognised when they ane
cxtinguished — that i=, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued )

Financial assets (continued )

Available-lor-sale financial assets and financial assets st fair value through profitor loss are subsequently carmied at Fair value.
Loans and recesvables and held-to-maturity invesiment= are carmed at amortised cost using the elfective interest method.
Crains and losses anising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through peolit or loss” calegory are
included in the income statement in the period in which they anse. Gains and losses ansing from changes in the Fair valoe of
available-lor-=ale financial assets are recognised direetly in equaty, until the financial asset is derecognised or impadired. At
this time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in egquaty 15 recogmised in profit or loss. However, interest calou-
lated using the effective interest method and foreign currency gains and losses on monetary assets classified as available for
saile are recogni=ed in the income: statement. Dividends on available-for-sele equity instruments are recognised in the income
stptement when the entity = nght (o receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are hased on current bid prices. If there is no active market for a
finencial p==ct, the Bank establishes (ar value usng valuation technigues, These include the use of recent arm's length trans-
actions, discounted cash Aow anal ysis, and other valuation techniques commoenly used by markel participants.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1. Classafication as debt o equaty
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either fnancial liabilities or as equaty in accordance wath the substance of the
contractieal arangement.

1T, Equity instrurments
A equity instrument is any coniract that evidences a residual interest in the asseds of an entity after deducting all of iis 1i-
ahilities, Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

11E. Financial guarantee contracts liabilities

Financial guasantes coniract liabilities are messured initially at their fair values and are subsequently measured ai the higher
of the amount of the abligation under the contract, as determined in aceordance with [AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liaksli-
fie= and Contingent Asseis; and the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amoriisation recognized
in accordance with the revenue recognition policies.

I, Financial liabilites
Financial liabilities are classified as either Anancial liabilities *at Gair value throwgh prodit and loss" or other financial liakili-
fies",

Cither liabilities, borrowing and deposits, ane initially mesasured @t Gair value net ol ransaction costs and subsequently mea-
sured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognized on elfecti ve yield basis.

The effective interest method 15 a method of caleulating the amoriized cost of a Ainancial asset or a iinancial liabality and of al-
Iecating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The elTective interest rate 15 the rate that exactly dis-
counts eatimated Miture cash payments of feceipts thiodgh the expected life of the finabaal instrument of, when appropriate,
a shorter penod 1o the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liatality, When calculating the effective interest
fate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractial tepms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment op-
frons) bt does nod consider Muture eredit losses, The caleulation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties
fo thae comtract that aie an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all cther prermiums or diseounts.

@cmmm&mjw



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Offsetiing financial instruments

Financial assets and liskalities are offset and the net smount reported in the balance sheet when there is 2 legally enlorceahls
mght to oflset the recogmsed amounts and there 1= an imtenbion o settle on 2 net basis, or realise the assel and settle the -
abality simultaneous]y.

Interest income and expense
Imterest ineomie and expense For all interest-beanng financial mstroments are recogrsed within interest ineome " and “interest
expense’ n the ncomes stalement on accrual bass wang the effective mierest method.

Cmee o fimancial assel or o groap of similar financial assets has been wollen down as o result of aoompaorment loss, inlerest
inceanie = recogmsed usimg the e of mierest used o discount te Tutune cash fows for the porpose of messunng the impsar-
mienl loss,

Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an scerual basis when the service has been provided. Loan commitment
fizes for leans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred {together with related direct costsh and recognized as an adjust-
mem 1o the effective iMerest rate on the loan. Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the syndication has been
completed and the Bank has retained no part of the loan package for itsell or has retained a part at the same efTective interest
rate as the other participants. Commission and fees arising from negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of, a transac-
tion for a third party are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.

Dividend income
Eavidends are recogmised in the income statement when the entity s nght to receive payment is established.

Sale and repurchase agreemenis

Securities sold subject i repurchase agreements ('repos’h are reclassified in the financial statements as pledged assets when
the iransferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the collateral; the counterparty liability is inclsded in
amounts due 10 other hanks, deposits from Banks, other deposits o deposits due o customers, & appropriate. Secunties
purchased under agreements i resell {“reverse repos’ ) are recorded as loans and advances io other banks or cusiomers, as ap-
propriate. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrved over the life of the agreements
using the effective interest method. Securities lent 1o counterpariies are also retained in the financial siatements.

Impairment of financial asseis

(a} A=scl= carmed st amortised cost

The Bank assesses at each halance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assels is imipaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events thal oceurred after the  inifial recognition of the
assel (aloss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash Aows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliabl v estimated.

The critenia that the Bank uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss inelude:

*  Delinquency in coniractual payments of prineipal or inferest;

*  Cash Aow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for example, equity ratio, net income percentage
of sales),

*  Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

*  Imatiation of bankruptey proceedings;

*  Deterioration of the bormower s competitive position: and

*  Deterioration in the value of collateral; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

{a) Assets camied al amontised cost (contimued)

The estimated period between a loss occurring and it identi fication is detenmined by management for each identified port-
folic. In peneral, the periods used vary between three months and 12 months; in exceptional eases, longer periods are war-
ranted.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, and individually or collectively f'or financial assets that are nod individually significant. If the Bank determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it in-
cludes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit isk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impair-
ment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairmend loss is or continues to be recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The ameunt of the loss is measured as the dilference between the asset’s camrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit los=es that have not been incurred ) discounted at the financial asset’s original effec-
tive interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowsnce account and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. 11 & lean or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impainment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the condract. As a practical ex-
pedient, the Bank may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The caleul ation of the present value of the estimated future cash Aows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less eosts for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
For the purposes of a collective evalualion of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the hasis of similar credit risk char-
acteristics {i.e, on the basis of the Bank's grading process that considers assel type, industry, gecgraphical location, eollateral
type, past-due status and other relevant factors). Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash Alows fior
groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors” ability to pay all amounts due sccording to the contractus] tenms of
the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the hasis of
the contractual eash flows of the assets in the Bank and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those in the Bank. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current obeervable data to reflect the effects
of current conditions that did not afTect the pericd on which the historical loss experience is based and to remaove the effects
of conditions in the historical period that do not curmently exist.

Estimates of changes in fwure cash Aows For groups of assets should reflect and be directional ly consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to pericd (for example, changes in unemployment rates, property prices, paymen status,
or other factors indicative of changes in the probabality of losses in the Bank and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash fows are reviewed regularly by the Bank 1o redwee any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for loan impaimment. Such loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of loss has been determined.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impaimment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 1o an
event occuming after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognized impairment boss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the
income staement in impairment charge for credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

by Assels classified as available for sale

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
secunity below iis cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. I any such evidence exists for avail-
able-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquasition eost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income staement on equity instruments are nod
reversed through the income statement. IF, in a subsequent period, the Fair value of a debt instrument classified as available
for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related o an event oocuming after the impairment loss was recognised
in proft or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

(e} Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment of individually significant and whose terms have been re-
negofiated are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans. [n subsequent vears, the asset is considered
to be past due and disclosed only if renegotiated.

Property and equipment
Property and equapment are stnted at cost less pecumulated depreciation and accumulated impaimment losses.

Depreciation i= calculated on o stranght line basis at annual rates estimated o wite off the cost of property and equipment
over their expected usedul lives, on the following bases

Bank building= 20 yrs
Computer cquapment { Including Smart card equipment) 5yTs
Motor vehacles 4y
Office Equipment 5 yTs
Furmature and fithngs SyTs

Intangible assets-computer software costs
Casts ineurred o compiter software are initially aceounted For at cost as intangible assets and subsequently at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortization is calculated on & siraight line basis over the estimated wselul lives and useful life nod exceeding a pericd of 5
esrs.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
Ateach halance sheet date, the Bank reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible sssets to determine whether
there iz any indication that these assets have sulTered an impaimment loss.

If ohjective evidence on impairment losses exists, the recoversble amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance aceount and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

In determining the recoverable amount, the Bank considers the higher of the fair value of the asset less costs to sell, and value
in use. [n estimating value in use, the Bank is cognisant of the estimated Muture cash fiow discounted 1o the present value
using a pre-1ax discount rate that is reflective of the current market assessment of time value of money and the risks specific
o the asset itsell.

Intangible assets with indefinite uselul life and intangible assets not vet available for use ane tested for i mpai rment annually,
and when there is indication that the asset may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3. PRINCIPALACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets {continued)

Where impai rment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit} is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized.

Statutory non-distributable reserve

[AS 39 requires the Bank w recogmise an impairment loss when there is objective evidence that loans and sdvances are
impaired. However, Bank of Tanzama prodential guidelimes require the Bank o sel aside amounts for imparment losses on
loans and advances in addition to those losses that have been recopmsed under LAS 39 Any such amounts set aside represent
approprations of retained earnings and not expenses in determinang profit or loss, Thess amounts are dealt with in the stat-
Lory reserve.

Retirement benefits obligations

The Bank’s coniributions in respect of retirement benefit cosis are charged o the income statement in the year io which they
relate. The Bank makes contnibutions o Mational Social Secunty Fund and Parastatal Pension Fund, statutory defined contri -
hution pension schemes. The Bank's obligations under the schermes are limited to specific contributions legislated from time
tor gz and are charged to the income statement in the year ioowhich they relate,

Leasehold land
Payments to pequite leasehold interest in land are treated o= prepand operating lease rentals and amortized on a strmght line
basis over the peniod of the lease.

Amortization of leased premises refurbished
Leased premises refurbishment represents cosis ineurred by the Bank in refurbishmend of leased banking premises. The cosis
are amormized over a penod of three vears Crom the vear the costs are incurmed,

Grants
Grants related to assets are treated as deferred income and released to the income statement over the expected useful lives of
the assets concerned.

Girants towards improvemend of Bank’s processes are recognized as income over the pernods necessary o match them with
the related costs.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpesse of cash Aow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, short term liguid investments which are
readily convertible into known ameunds of cash and which sre within three menths matunty from the dete of acquisibion,
balances with Bank of Tanzania (excluding the Statutory AMimmum Reserve) and balances with odher banks with msturity of
less than three menths, less advances [rom other banks repayable within three months from the date of the advance

Dividends

Davidends are charged to equity in the penod in which they are declared, Propsed dividends are nod acerued until are rati fied
at the Annual General Meeting.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions for liabilities and charges
Entittememts o armual leave are recogmzed when they accrie o emplovess, Proviaon 15 made (or the estmated laklity in
respect of annual leave acerved on the balance sheet die.

Contingent liabilities

Letters of credils, accepiances and guarantees are generally writben by the Bank to support performance of the customer o
third parties. The bank will ondy be required 1o meet these obligations in the event of the customer’s default. These obligations
are aceounbed for as off balanee sheet transactions and disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Comparalives
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted 1o conform with changes in presentation in the curent year.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that afTect the reparted amounts of assets and liabilities sathin the next inancial
year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based an histoneal experience and other factors, inclsding ex-
pectations of future events that are believed o be reasonable under the circumstances.

Impairment losses on loan and advances

The Bank reviews its lnan portfolics (o assess impaimment regularly, [n determining whether an impaimment loss should be re-
corded in the income statement, the Bank makes judgements as o whether there is any observable data indicating that there s
a measurahle decrepse in the estimated Future cash flows from s portfolio of loans, befone a decrease can be identified with an
individual loan in that porifolio. This evidence may include ob=ervable data indicating that there has been an adverse change
in the payment status of borrowers in s Bank, or national or lecal economic conditions thst correlate with delault= on assets in
the Bank. Management uses estimates based on historical loss expenence lor assets with credit risk chamctenstics and obpec-
tive evidence of impairment similar b those in te portfolio when scheduling its future cash Aows.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cesh flows ane reviewed regalady
ir reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience

Held 1o maturity investments

The Bank fallows the gudance of LAS 39 an classafving non-denvative financial assets with fxed or determnable payments
amid fixed matunty as held-te-matenty, This classifcation reguires sgnificant judgrment, In making s judgment, the Bank
evilustes its intention and abiliy to hold sich imvestment to matunty. I the Bank fals o keep these mvestments o malinly
ather than for the speci e arcumstances — Ffor example, selling an msignifeant amount <hose o matunty — 1 will be reguanced
ter reclassily the entine class as available For sale The mvestiments would therelore be measured ot Gar vale ol amortised
cusl,

Property, plant and equipment
Critical estimates are made by the Directors in determining the uselul lives of property, plant and equipment as well as their
residual values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank's activities expose it to a vanety of finencial risks and these sctivities involve the analysis, evalustion, scceplance
and management of some degree of sk or combination of nsks. Taking nsk is core 1o the financial business, and the opera-
tiomal nsks are an ineviteble consequence of being in business. The Bank = aim i= therefore to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the Bank s financial perfomance. The Bank s risk manage-
ment policies are designed o identily and analyse these nsks, to set approprate nsk limits and controls, and o monitor the
risks and adherence to limits by means of relisble and up-to-date information systems. The Bank regularly reviews its nisk
management policies and systems o reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

The Board of Directors has overall responsabality for the establishment and oversight of the Bank's nsk management frame-
work. As part af i's governance structure, the Board of Direckors has embedded a comprehensive risk management frame-
wiork for messuning, monitonng, controdling and matigation of the Bank's risks. The policies are integrated in the overall
management information systems of the bank and supplemented by & management reperting structure.

Fisk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly o refleet changes in market conditions, products and services
offered, and emerging best practice. The Bank, through its traiming and management standards and procedures, aims o de-
velop a disciplined and constructive control envirenment, in which all employees | stakeholders understand their roles and
obligations.

The Boprd s Credit Committes, Risk Committes, and Audit Committes are responsible for monitonng complisnee with the
Bank’s risk management policies and procedures, and review of the adequacy of nisk management frameswork in relation
to the risks faced by the Bank. These commitbees pre assisted in these functions by vanous management committees which
undertake both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to
the Hoeard.

The mast important type of nsks are:

Credit risk

Liguidity risk

Mlarket risk

- Interest rate risk

- Foreign exchange risk
= Operstional risk

The notes below provide detailed information on each of the above risks and the Bank’s objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and the Bank's manzgement of capital.

Credit risk

Credhl sk refiers 1o the nsk that o counter party wall delfzult on s comtractual obligations resulling m Gnancial foss 1o the
Bank. It arises principal ly from lending, trade Anmee and tressury activities, The amounts presented in the balance sheet are
et el rmpirment for doubitful debis, estmated by the Bank's management based on prior expenence and thear assessmemt of
Lhe CUFTERT SConOmic environment.
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5.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (continued)

1. Management of credit sk
The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for the management o credit sk o= Credit Committee which is re-
sponsible [or oversight of the Bank's credit risk, including:

Formulating credit policies, covering risk acceplances criterinin target market, collateral requirements,

credit appraisal, nsk grading and reporting, documentary and legal procedures, and compliance with regulatory
and statulory requirements.

Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval of credit [acilities.

Reviewing and assessing credit nsk on all exposunes in excess of approval limits of the management prior o
facilitics being commitied 1o customers.

Limiting concentrations of exposure to counterparties and industries (for loans and advances).

Dieveloping and maintaiming the Bank = nsk gradings in order o categorn=e exposures according to the degree
of ik of fnancial loss (peed and o focus menagement on the sttendant msks. The nsk grading system 1= used
in determining where impairment provisions may be required ageinst specific eredit exposures. The current risk
erading framework consists of severn] grades reflecting varying degrees of risk of default and other credit nsk
mitigation. The respensibility for setting risk grades lies with the Committee and nsk grades are subject 1o
regular reviews by the Board.

Reviewing repors on compliance with agreed exposure limits, including these for sclected industries and
product types.

Day o dey management of the bank s credit nsk 1s vested in Head of Credit Department who reports (o the Managing

Dhirecior.

Regular audits of the credit processes and management are undertaken by Internal Audat.

1L Muamum exposure to credit nisk belore collateral held

T Ll
Shs" e} % Shs" (MM} b

Credit Exposwares
On — balance sheet items
Ttems in the course of collection from other banks 44 300,264 % 2725155 3%
IDeposits and balances due from banking instiwtions 185 B3R 522 199 175485322 18%
Loans and advances o customerns 599,726, 0K 59% 409 132 485 2%
Crovernment secunties — Held o matunty 120427633 12% 163714850 17%

954297027 4% TIESRAIN 20 80%
Off-balance shect items
Letters of credit 49,591 367 5% 185307374 19
Cruarantecs [5RS04l 1% 10395668 1%

G 480508 2 6% 195703047 2 0%
1019775435  |0W%  BT1.Z8737F 0 MV

The above represents the worst case seenano of credit expesure for both years, without laking sccount of any collateral held
or ofher credit enhancement= attached.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit nsk (continued )

Loans and advances o customers and off -balance sheet items comprise of 65% of the total maximum exposure. While callat-
eral 1s an important mibgant o credit nsk, the Bank policy 1= o establish that loans are within the capacity of the customer o
repay, &= the primary way out. Other than overdrawn exposures amounting o Tshe 354, 566,819 (2007) and Tshs 366,451 741
(2000 that are not secured, all other Facilibes pre secured by collateral in the form of charges over cash, land and buildings,
marketable securities, plant and machinery ameang others. The Fair value of eollateral held for impaired loans and advances is
TShs 63,918 680, The Bank i= confident its policies and procedures provide sufficient sal'epuards agaimst exposure on credit
nsk as shown on the table below:

M. Classitication of loans and sdvances

31 Decembrer 2O0T 31 Decembeer 2006

Loan and advance to Loan and advance to

cuskomers Cuslomers

Tshs 000" Tshs 000"

Meither past due nor impaired 550355412 385 8 4365
Fast due but not impaired 125963 454 11,702 181
Impaired 26387 243 1238] BOR
Giross 509 716, 108 S0 132 485
Les= Allowance [or i et L5008 8531 2915357
JOER| TS 406727 IR

Apart from the loans and advances o customers, all other credit exposunes are neither past due nor impeired.

(&) Loans and advances that are neither past due nor impaired

The Bank clas=ifies loans and advances under this category [or those exposures that are up to date and in line with contractual
pgreements. Such loans would have demonstrated financial conditions, nisk factors and capacity to repay that are scceptable.
These exposures will normally be mantened largely wathin approved product programs and wath no signs ol impaimment or
distress, These exposures are categorized as normal accounts in line with the Bank of Tanzanis {BoT ) regulabions.

() Past due but not impaired
This category includes exposures that pre over 30 days (31 - 90 days) past due.

(&) Impaired loans and advances

Impaired loans are loans Tor which the Bank determines that it is probable that it will be unable 1o collect all pnncipal and
interest due sceording o the contraciual terms of the loan agreement(s). These accounts under BoT guidelines are kermed as
non-per orming loans.

IV Allowances for impairment
The Bank establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represents ils estimate of incurred losses. in its loan portfolic:
These allowances are o specific loss component that relstes o individusl exposures.

V. Write-ofl policy

All loans classified as loss are writlen off by the Board al the end ol the quarter during which they are classified as loss. The
decison o classly the loan s= loss and hence write it off when the loan/advance i= considered as uncollectible and or collat-
eral can not either easily realized or expected proceeds not adequate to pay the entire exposure. Wiitlen off loans are reviewed
every quarter o determine recoversble and no recoverable amount rom each witten off aceount. Recovery measures are
taken on amounts constdered recoverable.

@EMMM&WJW



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
5.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk {continued)

W1 Collateral held

The Bank holds collatersd aganst loans and advances (o customens in (he form of deposit under len marigage inlerests over
property, registered securites over assels, and guaraniees, Estimaies of Gar value are based on the value of col lateral ssessed
il the tme of borowang, and refreshed after every three vears. Secunty strociures and legal covenamls are also subgected
Fo regulir review lo ensure they continue o fulfill their intended purpose. Collateral generally 1= nol held over deposits and
bedance dise from banks and 1tems i the course of collection [rom other banks, excepl when secunities are held as part of
reverse repurchase and secunties bomowing actvity, Collateral usually 1s not held against government securiies, and ne such
collateral wis hedd at 31 December 2007 or 2006,

WIL Senlement risk

The Bamk's setivities may give nse o nsk al the wme of semlement of wansactions and trades. Settlement risk 1z the nsk af
Fogs due to the Falure of counter-party (o honour s obdigations (o deliver cash, secunties or olher assels as contraciually
agreed, For certan tvpes of ransactions the Bank mitigates this nsk by pre-aranging Gaeilines with the customer. Seitlement
Tirmats formm part of the credit approsal ©limit men lonng process.

WL Comcentrations of risk
The Bank memiors concentration of n=k by economic sector in line with set imits per sector. An anal vsis of concentrations
within the loan and advances o custormers, customer deposit= and ofl balance sheet 1ems are provided inonote 42,

Liguidity nsk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations [rom financial liabilities. Assets and
Lighilites Commitiee (ALOC), a management committee is tasked with the responsibility of ensuring that all foreseeable
funding commitments and deposits withdrawals can be met when due, and that the Bank will not encounter difficulty in
mieeting obligations from its financial liabilities as they occur. ALCO relies substantially on the Bank™s Treasury Department
to coordinate and ensure discipline across the Bank, certily sufficient liquidity under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Bank's reputation.

1. Liquidity and funding management
The Bank's liquidity and funding policies require the folloawing:

The bank enters into lending contracts subject to availability of funds.

Projecting cash flows by major currency and eonsidering the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto.

Monitoring balance sheet liquidity rtios against internal and regulatory requirements,

Madntaining an array of diverse range of funding sources with back —up facilities,

Monitoring depositor concentration in order o avoid unduee reliance on large individual depositors and ensure

a safisfactory lunding mix.

*  Investment im short term liquid instruments, which can easily be sold in the market when the need anses.

+  Invesiments in property and equipment are properly budgeted are subjected io prudendial limits to minimize
the Bank’s exposure.

*  Mlwinimning liquidity contingency plans. These plans must identily early indicators of siress conditions and

describe actions to be taken in the event of difficulties arising from systemic or other crises while minimising

adverse long-term implications.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

[1. Soiiree of Funding

The Bank has an aggres=ve strategy mmed abimereasing the cestomer deposit base, To this end, the Bank maimtans a diversi-
fied and stable Munding bose comprsing current'demand, sovings and tire deposits. The bank bosrows from the inter bank
(i sheaart tenm hagudiny regquarcments,

[I1. Exposure to Laguidity Bisk

The key memaire wsed by the Bank For managang hoguadity msk is the ratio of ligiid assets o demand babilites of 25%, For
thas purpose liguid assets are considered cosh and interbank deposits, investment in secunbes malunng within ame year,
cleanng and Statutory Minimum Feserve (SME) deposit. The Bank of Tanzania requires that the Bank mmntaan an ShE
raftice o 105 of custormer deposts otal deposats and barrewings fram the General Public i form of 50°7% of vault cash and
SRR account held in BaT on daily basas, The Bank's matinng habilines comprises all deposits, liabilities and off —balance
shreet Mems with matunty pened of less thal one vear, The Boank has a lmal of oom 1o ol deposat of 205 and houisdity ing-
pers of 20% of top 10 depasats o tetal depests and 5% of core deposit to total deposits.

The Bank's expesaime to hguadity rsk at 31 December 12 summmian 2ed m note 45

Market risk

The objective of market risk management process is to manage and control market risk exposures in order to optimize re-
turn om risk while maintaining a market profile as a provider of financial products and services. Market risk is the nisk that
mcvernent in market Fectors, including interest rates and foreign curreney exchange rates, will reduce income or value of
portiolio.

Overall respomsibility For management of market risk rests with ALCO. Market Risk Management Policies are in place to
guide managenent of this risk and are subject to review and approval by the Board anmually.
Mdarket Fisk has been subdivided into Interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk.

[ IndeTest mate risk

The Bank is exposed tothe risk that the value of a financial instrument will Auctuate due o changes in market interest rates.
The maturities of asset and liakalities and the ability 1o replace at an seceptable cost s they mature are important Factors in
assessing the Bank's exposure to changes in interest rates.

[n addition to maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rates deposit base, interest rates on advances o
custormers are either pegged to the Bank's hase lending rate or Treasury bill rate. The base rate is adjusted Irom time bo tine
1o reflect the cost of deposits.

[nterest rates on customer deposits are negotiated between the bank and the customer with the bank retaining the discretion
tey sckjust the rates in line with changes in market trends. The interest rates, therefore, Auctuste depending on the movensent
in the market interest rates. The Bank's exposure to interest rate risk at 31 December is summarized in note 45,

The Hank has set a trigger on earnings a1 risk to net interest income at different maturity hands based on assumptions devel-
oped Mrom the past deposit trends and monitoring is done on monthly basis by ALCCH
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Market risk (continued)

I1. Foreign exchange risk

The Bank 15 expased to the fsk on earmings and capital ansing from adverse movement of foreign exchange rates. The Bank
partici pates in the foreign currency market as a market maker and a market user. Foreign iransactions and linits are reviewed
and approved by the Board. Treasury Department is responsible for management of fonei gn exchange risk including wnit irad-
ing within limits and monitoring the exchange rates. The Middle Office under Risk Management Depariment is responsible
for monitaring foreign deals performed by treasury Department and ensures that dealer’s limits and opening position linats
are ohserved. The Middle Office alsoe monitors compliance to Treasury procedure manuals, The Boeard through Governance
and Risk Management committee ensures that foreign exchange nsks are managed appropaately, The Bank's exposure o
foreign currency exchange rate risk ai 21 December is summanzed in note 47,

The Bank carries cuf tests io determine exposure to marked risk. As at 31 December 2007 stress fest on inderest rate nsk
indicated an exposure of Tshs 16,3 Wllion which is 15.5% of the Bank s Core Capital while stress test on foreign exchange
risk indicated an exposure of Tshs 336 million which is (.57% of the Bank’s Core Capital, The Bank al=o pariicipated in the
capital market by buying ‘selling shares for trading purposes. However at the end of the yvear 20017, the bank had mo exposure
to equity investments and therefore no stress test was caried out. Generally, stress test results indicate that shocks will not
lessd 1o capital impainment. The Bank has embarked on preparation for implementation of appropriate systems [or measune-
ment of market risk using more sophisticated models such as value at Risk

Operational Risk
Operational risk i= the n=k of direct or indirect loss ansing from imadequate or fmled internal processes, people, systems, and
other external events. Operational nsks anse (rom all of the Bank's operations end are feced by all departments.

The Bank's objective 15 1o manage operationsl nisk so as o balance the aveidance of finanoal losses and demage o the
Bank's reputation.

The pnmary responsibality for the development and implementation of controls to address operabional nsk 15 assigned o
semior management within each department. The management keam ensures that:

*  Aneffective, intcgrated operational sk management framework that incorporates a clearly defined
orgamizational =tructure s mantaned.

Each department has defined roles and responsibilities For all aspects of operational nsk management.
Appropniate tools that support the identification, assessment, controd and reporting  of key risks are used.
Operntional nsk systems are subjected o independent reviews by Internal Audit.

A comprehensive business contimuty plan 1s maintained and reviewed regularly.

= = & @

Fisk Commattee of Management compnsing all Heads of Department oversess the nsk mansgement practices in the Bank.
This i= done through monthly reports prepared by Risk Management Department which monitors exposures to operational
nsk including non-comphance (o intemal policies and procedures. The reports assisl senior management o assess the level
ol exposure and deliberale on action 1o be taken to mitigate the exposures.

The Board Governance and Fisk Management Commitlee oversees risk management pracices and receives reports on the
Bank's exposures from the management on quarterly basis. The Committee deliberates on all issues that need Board atten-
tiom,



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Bank's objectives when managing capatal, which 15 a broader concepl than the “equity” on the (ace of balance sheets,
e

*  Tocomply with the capital requirements as set out under the Banking and Financial Institubions Act 2006
(CAP 342) which 1= momitored by the Bank of Tanzanda, the regulator of the banking sector in Tanzanda.
The Act requires that:

(@) Every bank shall commence operations with and maintain at all times a minimum of core capital of not less
than five Bllion shillings or such higher amount as the Bank msy presenbe by order pubdished in the Gaoette;

(b} Every bank =hall at all imes maintain core capital of not less than wen per eent of its tetal nsk-weighted
pssets and off halance sheet exposure; and

(k) Every bank =hall at all imes maintain wodal capital of not less than twelve per cent of its woial nsk welghted
pssets and ol halance sheet exposure.

*  Tospleguard the Bank's ability (o continee as a going concem so thet it can conbinue to provide retums. 1o
shareholders and benefits tooother stakeholders; and

+  To maintain a streng capilal base i support the development af the Bank's business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored daily by the hank s management employing techniques based on the
guidelines developed by the Basel Commitiee o= implemented by the Central Bank of Tanzania for supervisory purposes.
The required information is filed with the Central Bank on a monthly basis.

The Bank's regulatory capital falls inko two tiers:

{a) Tierl: Capital: Share eapital, retained eamings and reserves created by appropriations of retained eamings.
(b Tier 2 - Capital: Qualifying subordinated loan capital

The rigk-weighted assets are measured by means of 4 hierarchy of four sk weights classified according to the nature of assets
and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated with each asset and counterparty, taking into account
any eligible collateral or guaramees. A similar trestment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with some adjustments to
reflect the more contingent nature of the potential losses.

The composition and the ratios of the Bank™s regulatory capital and the details of the risk weighted assets for the year ended
31 Decernber 20607 are summanzed in note 37 and 44 respectively. During the years ended 31 December 2006 and 31
December 2007, the Bank complied with all capital requirements to which they were supposed too

The increase of the regulatory capital in the vear of 2007 is mainly due to the contribution of the current-year profit. The
inerease in risk weighted assels reflects the expansion of business in general.

@cﬁmmmaﬂmxw



10

11.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIA]

Term boans
Mostro sccounts (Placement)

Treasury bills — Held o Matarity
Private bonds ~ Held to Maturity
Treasury bands — Held to Maturity
Government bonds — Held to Matarity

Demznd deposits

Saving deposits

Fixed depoaits
Commission on posiro transactions
Loans and other facilities

FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Commssion income
Fees and other charpas

NET TRADING INCOME

STATEMENTS (Continued)

2007 2006

Tahs *000 Tahs 000
31,612,416 18,102,351
26,695,123 16,555,400
742,436 601,540
9,326,475 7,736,937
14,330,058 15,929,980
677,045 B55,356
2,677,020 3,605,616
3,084,554 3,063,901
80,145,140 6,451,081
867,683 473073
4,607 600 3,337,260
10,475,290 9,049,903
330,638 325,820
725 927 653423
17,007,147 13,839,479
10,452 435 233,992
16,154,358 11,533,632
26 606,796 19,767 624

Foseign exchange sel trading incoemse includes gaing and lodges from spol and forward contraces and tranalated

foreign currency assets and liabilities.

Exchange gain - trading
Exchange loss = revaluation

OTHER OFPERATING INCOME

Rental income

FOXCF grant income (note 32)
DAMIDA grant income (mode 33}

RFESF grant income (note 34)

Profit on disposal of property and equipment

11,517,230 7,184,354
(784,549) {551,991}
10,732,681 6,632,903
74,544 72,285
284,874 199,598
175,087 280,957
57,750 5
5 65,227
61,084 133 563
653,339 751,630
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2iW7 2006
Tshs “000 Tshs ‘000
12. OPERATING EXPENSES
Staff costs (note 13) 25, TET 992 18,347,047
Directors” fees 174,506 159,469
Aunditor’s remuncrations 110,493 115,855
Depreciation and amortization of intangible wsscts 3174924 2365637
Amaortization of leased premises reflrbishied 1,303,908 1,040,598
Other expenses 24,551,206 16,999,473
35,103,029 39,228,079
13. STAFF COSTS
Salaries and allowances 15,784,736 11,572,105
Staff training 1,864,759 1,629,516
PPF and M55F contribution 2,106,862 1,545,039
Poat — employment benefits charge H60,690 635,336
Leave pay 994,851 134,331
Medical expenses T23.474 610,091
Others: 3,452, 620 2416620
25,767,992 18,547,047
14. TAXATION
{a) Tax expense
Current taxation:
Based on the taxabla profit for the year at 30% 15,540,356 10,643,196
Deferred taxation charge/{credit) (1,162,347 1,318,543
14,378,009 11,961,741
(i) Reconciliation of tax expense to the expected tax based on sccounting profit:
Accounting profit before taxaton 51,703,029 38445735
Tax at the applicable rate of 30% 15,510,909 11,533,721
Met tax effiect of expenses not deductible for tacc'
(income taxed at lower rate) (1,132 900) 428 (L2
14 378,009 11,961,741
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT S (Continued)

15. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANK OF TANEZANIA

Cash in hand
Balances with Bank of Tanzania:
- Statuiory Minimum Reserve
= Oiher balances

2007 2006
Tshs ‘000 Tshs “000
34.237,119 29,992,851
83,500,000 66,800,000
51,672,942 3,004,748
169,410,061 99,797,599

The Bank is required to maintain minimum cash reserves of 10% of deposits with Bank of Tanzania (Statutory
Minimuum Reserve). Statotory Minimum Reserve is not available to finance the Bank®s day to day operations
and hence is exchoded foom cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow statement (note 38 (b))

16. DEPOSITS AND BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
Placement with other banks- Foreign currency
Maturing:

Within | month
Within 1 40 3 months
Within 3 to 6 months

Placement with Other Banks- Local Corrency

Within Imonth
Within 1 to 3 momths
Within 3 to 6 months

E
E
:
:
:
g

2007 2006

Tshs ‘000 Tshs ‘000
158,402,654 102,444,903
- 41,574,085

. 20,319,490

158,402 654 164, 338 476
3,750,000 -

- 1,840,000

3,750,004 1,840,000
27,177,555 5,865,225
508,713 441,619
189,838 175,485,322

ing Tsha 189,330,209 (2006 — Tshs 154,724.213,000) matrs

within thres months and foren part of cash and cash equivelents for the porposa of cash flow statement (Note
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2007 20
“Tahs 00 Tahs “000
17. GOVERNMENT SECURITIES
Treasary hills
Maturing within:
0 days = 6,841,200 48,195,190
90 days  * 17,522,200 14,658,500
180 days 17,229,200 21,191,360
364 days 20,496,320 9,024,200
62,088,920 93,069,250
Interest receivable 5,583,936 5,384,932
67,672,856 98,454,182
Treasury bonds
Maturing within:
2 years 4,383,772 10,000,000
5 yoars 9,929,778 11,720,298
10 years 9,891,985 13,933,293
24,205,535 35,653,591
Interest receivahle 628 485 927077
24,834 000 16,580,668
Government bonds
Maturing within:
8 years 420,900 420,900
9 years 4,010,900 4,010,900
10 yesars 11,803 486 11,800,040
12 years 11,685 471 11,688,952
7,920,757 27,920,752
Imterest receivable - 759258
27,920,757 28,680,010
120,427,633 163,714,860

* Treasury bills worth Tshs 24,363,400,000 (2006 - Tshs 62,853,600,000) mature within three months and form
part of cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow statement (note 38(b)).

The weighted average effective interest rates at 31 December 2007 were: treagury bills - 14.43%; treasury bonds -
13.35%; and Government bonds = 11%.

18. OTHER SECURITIES 007 1006

Tsks “000 Tshs ‘000

EADB bonds

Maturing within 5 months 1,624 495 2,264,929

FTA bonds

Maturing after 5 years 1,774,446 5,666,142

BIDCO bonds

Maturing after 7 years 2,790,809 -

Interest receivable 183,719 250,334
6,373,469 8,381 405

These bonds are stated at amortized cost. The weighted average effective intersst rate on other securities at
31 December 2007 was 10.6% (2006 = 9.29%).

_) CROB Bomk Aol Bepori 307



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2007 2006
Tshs "0 Tshs “0
19, AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS
Investment in shares quoted at Dar es Salsam Exchange = 188
20, LOANS AND ADVANCES TD CUSTOMERS
{a) Loans and advances
Loans and advances to customers. 576,317,648 393,614,392
Loans and advances to staffl 12,156,338 7,171,683
Interest receivable 11,252,132 8,346,410
599,726,108 409,132 485
Specific provision for bad and doubtful loans and advances (note 20(c)) (5,908 B63) (251535T)
Interest in suspense (5,470,425) (445.486)

(11,379,285) (3,360,843)
588,346,820 405,771,642

‘The effective interest raie on loans and advances o customers was 14.03%

Met loans and advances.

(b} Amalysis of advances o customers by maturity

Maturing:
Within one year 241,422 6574 268,601,000
Between one year and three years 135,541,149 48 871,000
Orver three years 211,382,997 28,299, 642
583,346,820 405,771,642
(e) Movement of provision for bad and doubiful debis
At the beginning of the year 2915357 2,714,725
Mt increase (note 200d)) 2,993 506 200,632
Al the end of the year 5,208,863 2,913,357
(d) Impairment losses
Increase in provigion on loans and advances { note 20(z)) 2,993 506 200,632
Increase in impairment losses on other assets (mote 21) 1,030,283 408,308
Bad debis charged off 660,173 324,462
Recoveries {1,454,878) {1,666,070)
Charged 1o income sialement 3,230 084 1 32
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I1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCLAIL

DTHER ASSETS
Cheques and items for clearance

Prepayments

Advance payment for capital items and software
Sundry receivables

Bills receivable
Less: Impairment losses on other ssets (note 200d))

LEASED PREMISES REFURBISHMENTS
Opening balance
Additions during the year

Less: Amortization doring the year

Closing balance

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - COMPUTER SOFTWARE
Cost
At 1 January 2007
dits
At 31 December 2007

Amortization
At 1 January
Charge for the year

At 31 December

Net book value
At 31 December

@ CROB Bk Asnunl Repors 307

STATEMENTS (Continued)

2007 2006
Tshs “000 Tshs “000
44,300,264 27251559
1,808,303 1,224,774
1,649,112 341,793
1,237,960 1,361,504
133,304 2,353,873
(1,649,600 (619,317}
47 480,343 31,914,186
1,623,135 1,428,234
2,533,112 1,235,409
4,156,247 2,663,733
{31,705) -
(1,303,908) (1,040, 598)
2,820,634 1,623,135
2,028,367 1,752,505

94,226 275,862
2,122,593 2,028,367
1,007,076 626,629

400,819 380,247
1,407,895 1,007,076

714,698 1,021,291




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. PROFERTY AND EQUIFMENT

Smart
Mator Offiee Computer card Securlty  Workin

Buildings vehiles  equipment  equipment equipmest  equipment  progress Taotal
— Tshs ‘808  Tshs ‘0  Tshs 080  Tshs 000  Tshs “000  Tshs 000  Tshs ‘Dd0  Tshs 000
Ard '.'lm.',rlm 3,003,599 1,726,683 5516115 3,774,245 2,243,297 240952 - 16513891
Additions 276,127 351,266 1. 7B 372 509,496 THS BER 123,03F 253,747 4097972
Disposals © (84382 (40,096) . . . . (A2047H)
Tramafier lo non carreal
nssets held for sale - {1 58 7, - - - {5618,387)
At | Jensary 2007 1,279,716 BEOS30 4TOSBI6 1246356 3,029,186 IT29ET  IEATET 14,768,798
Additions 1378650 LI3T89T 3,186,516 TI5,803 1,255,304 135,125 203902 £.223,297
Dieposals - - E - (240363) - - (40363)

A% 31 December 2007 46503476 2018937 1893342 39TLISF 4044127 TORI12 437689  32781,TI2

Al 1 Janeary 2006 BO1ET4 1,454,081 31579323 241,773 E41,532 36,867 - 9145450
Charge for the year 159,139 115074 E61,960 450,522 299,970 38,723 = 1,983,390
Elimninated on

dispasal = (184,382) (37,955) - - . P KT T
Tramsfier to mon carreat

nssets held for sale - (01a4Ey (RES602E) (ROIGE13) = o - (5600000
At | Janusary 2007 1,031,013 428,322 1,847,298 Tanea2 1,141,502 #5392 - 5258409
Charge for e year 199,170 192915 1,195,861 5§27 452 451,088 103 206 - 1767392
Eliminaied co

digpeoesl (203.367) (203.367)
Reclassification - {6,186} = = = = E (G 088)
Al 31 December 2007 1,250,183 715,051 3,043,159 1,258,134 1,391,223 199,498 ) TB5T.248
Nei book value

Al 3] Docember 2007 08, 193 1 Th 183 1.71 SOE614 45T ARG | CEC]
A2 31 December 2006 ' 2 LS04 LSRISE)  I7I3e5  353TET 5469387

15. NON CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Muoter Oifice Computer
wehicles equipment equipment Total
Tulas 000 Tahs W0 Taha W00 Tuhs 000
Cost 852848 ERELE ] 2,037,383 4395950
Accumslsted deprecistion —(S2BAE) _ (556035) __ (LAI6I3) _(4.592,639)
Met book value os at 31 December 2007
Mol book valise a5 &1 31 Decensber 2006 - 2599 TT2 1311
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2007 1006
Tshes *000 Tshs k)
26, PREPAID OFERATING LEASES
Leaschold land
Cost 414,859 -
.
At 1 Jamnsary - -
Charge for the year 6,713 o
At 31 December 6,713 -
Met book value 408,146 -
17. CUSTOMER DEFOSITS
Current and demand accounts 487 300,921 329,787,357
Saving accounts 316,262,137 256,904,401
Time deposits 04,127,767 200,644,879
Interest payable on deposits 5640478 4,194,092
1,013,331,303 791,530,729
Annbysis of customer deposits by maturity:
Payable within 90 days 534,865,833 TH6,837,3689
Paysble after 90 days and within one year 476,217,075 24,247,137
Payable after one year 2,248,395 446,203
1,013,331,303 791,530,729
28, DEPOSITS AND BALANCES DUE TO OTHER BANKS
Deposits from loecal banks - -
Loans from other banks 1,739,610 6,318,250

1,739,610 6,318,250

Bills payable * B.631,943 21,924,007
Sundry payables T315,852 2,206,736
Dividend payable ** 457,911 371,323
Accrued expenses 3,788,753 2,352,963
Otther lishilities 252,142 252,142

20,446,641 27,107,171

* Bills payable represents bankers cheques issued to customers that have not yet been presented for payment.

**[ividend payable represents uncollected dividends for the years 1996, 1998, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004,
2005 and 2006,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2007 2006
Tshs ‘000 ‘Tshs "D
30, TAXATION (RECOVERABLEVPAYABLE
Opening balince 339,253 1,843,129
Payments during the year (16,081,681)  (12,147,074)
Tax expense (note 14) 15,540,356 10,643,198
Closing balance (202,07} 319253
31. SUBORDINATED DEBT
Opening balance 2,016,000 2,016,000
Interest paid during the year {56,000} (6,000)
Interest payable 96,000 96,000
Closing balance 2,016,000 016

The subordimated debt from Danida Investment Fund (DIF) of Tshs 1,920,000,000 maturity date is seven years
from 30 Deccmber 2005, when the debt shall fall due. Interest is payable yearly at a rate of 5% p.a.

32, FDCF GRANT

007 2006

Tshs “00 Tshs “0D

Opening balance 477,242 676,840

Grant received during the year - o
Credited to income staterment (284,874} (195,598)

Cloging balance 192 363 477242

The Bank entered into contract with Enterplan Limited UK, whereby Enterplan agresd to pay & grant not
exgeeding Sterling Pound (GBF) 998 850 aver three years in support of the Smart Card project under the
Financial Deepening Fund (FDICF), The contract expired on 31 March 2005

07 2006
Tshs ‘008 Tshs 000
33. DANIDA GRANT

Opening balance 1,108,582 681,933
Grant received during the year - T07 506
Credited to income statement {(175,087) (280,957)
Repayment to DANIDA (791,699} o
Closing balance 141,796 1,108, 5822

DANIDA grant is under the Business Sector Program Suppost [1 (B3PS II). The program involves strengihening
the Bank in performance and business processes, The program also supports Microfinance and SME program of the
Bank, The program shall come to an end on 30 June 2008,

CRIAE Boxk Anmua Repori T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1007 200G
Tshs ‘008 Tshs *“000

34, RFSF GRANT
Opening balance - _
Cirant received during the vear 231,000 -
Credited to income statement (57,7500 -
Closing balance 1'?3& =

Thuuupummﬁummpmmmmpmmwmm
under the Prime Ministers Office-United Republic of Tanzania for support of Microfinance Institations.

2007 2006
‘Tshs “Hk Tshs 000
35, DEFERRED TAX ASSET
The net deferred tax asset, computed at the enacted rate of 30%, is
attributable o the following items:
Accelerated capital allowance 1,047,567 {B21,051)
Other movements 701,206 1,407,477
1,748,773 586,426
Movement in deferred tax Hability is as follows:
Balance at 1 January 586,426 1,904,969
Income statement credit{charge) 1,162,347 {1,318,543)
Balance at 31 December 1,748,773 586,426
36, SHARE CAPITAL
Anthorized
1,000,000,000 ordinary Shares of Tshs 100 each 100,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid
247,333,200 ordinary shares of Tshs 100 each 24,733,320 12,366,660
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
37. REGULATORY CAPITAL

The Bank complied with minimum capital requirement as per sec 16 and 17 of the Banking and Financial
[natitution Act (2006} and the Bank of Tanzania capital adequacy regulations 2001

The Bank's capital is computed in accordance with these regulations, as follows:

2007 2006
Tshs 000 Tshs “0dd
Share capital 24,733,320 12,366,660
Revenue reserve 79,632,754 36,525,684
104,366,074
68,592,344
Less: Prepaid expenise {(1,809,303) (1,244,744}
Core capital { Tier 1) 102,556,771 57,647,600
Add: Supplementary capital (Tier 2)
Subordinated debt 1,920,000 1,520,000
~LO4AT6TIL 69,567,600
38, CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(&) Reconcilistion of profit before axation t nel cash wsed in operations
Profit before taxation 51,703,029 38,445,735
Adjustment for-
iati 2,767,392 1,985,390
Amortization of intangible assets 400,819 380,247
Amortization of prepaid operating leases 6,713 -
Amortization of leased premises refurbishment 1,303,908 1,040,558
Profit on disposal of property and squipments (61,084) {133,563)
(LossyProfit on sale of listed shares 6,704 (4,782}
Fair value gain on quoted shares - (13,372)
DHvidend receivable {32,000)
56,095 481 41,635,026
Movement in working capital:
Increase in statutory minimom reserve {16,700, 0007 {6, 300,000)
Decrease/(increase) in balances with other banks 20,319,490 {20,319,490)
(Increase)/ decrease i treasury bills (7,708,964) 50,641,764
Increase in teasury bonds and other securitles 14,513,837 3,337,542
Increase in loans and sdvances to customers (182,575,178) {203,834 967)
Increase in other assels (15,633,251) (3,9659,832)
Increase in customer deposits 221,800,574 135,355,200
Decrease in ather Habilities {6,747,118) (2,212,319)
Diecrease in FIXCF grant (284,874) {199, 598)
(Decrense)inerease in DANIDA grant (966,7T86) 426,640
Increase in RFSP grant 173,250 -
Net cash generated from/i{used in) sperations £2,286,461 (5,440,025)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2007 2006
Tshs *008 Tshs 000

38. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Amalysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand 34,237,119 25,992 851
Balances with Bank of Tanzania 51,672,942 3,004,748
Balance with other banks 189,330,209 154,724,213
Treasury hills 24,363,400 62,853,690
Deposits and balances dus w0 other banks (1,739,610} (6,318,250}
297 864,060 244,257 252

39. DIVIDENDS

In respect of the carrent year, the Directors propose that & wial dividend of Tshs, 4,204,664 400 (2006 -
Tsha 2,102,332,2040) will be paid to sharcholders. This dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting and, in line with the provisions of International Accounting Standard No 10,
heas pot been included as a lisbility in these financial statements.

2007 2(W
Tahs D00 Tehs “(00
40, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guaraniees and indemnities 15,889,141 10,395,660
Letters of credit 49,591,367 185,307378
Travellers chegues. 74,400 352,040
Cutward foreign bills for collection (DFBC) 268,138 425,179
5,823,055 196,480,266

Lotters of credit sre commitments by the Bank to make payments to third parties, on production of sgreed
documents on behalf of customers and are reimbursed by the customer.

‘Ciuaraniees and indemnities are generally written by the Bank to suppart performance by a customer o third parties.
The Bank will only be required to meet these obligations in the event of the costomer’s defanlt.

Litigation

The Bank iz, in the normal course of business, involved in & numibser of court cases. The Bank has taken appropeiate

legal steps to defend against the claims on court cages. The Bank hes provided for the liabilities arizing out of
1 obligat]

obligations. No other provisions are made swaiting the court ruling, as in the opinion of the Directors
the potential lisbility is neither probable nor quantifishle at the date of thess financial statements.
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41.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2007 200
Tshs “00@ Tshs “000
COMMITMENTS
Commitmenits 1o extend credit 34,023,000 40,994,000
Capital Commitments
Authorized and contracted for 2,870,535 2,356,309
Anthorized not yet contracted for 2,290,000 430,000

5.?6‘]& E‘TEEED‘}
Capital commitments authorized and contracted sre in regpect of costs for refirbishment of Kigoma and
Mbeya; New cutless — Tarime, Korogwe, and Geita; purchase of two mobile wehicles, twelve Land

Capital commitments anthorized but not yet contracted for relates to new outlets Mbinga and Mboz,
Financial reporting sysicm, communication security solutions scquisition'constroction of a Disaster
Recovery Site and switch board npgrade.

CONCENTRATION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Details of significant concentrations of the banks assets, liabilities and off balance sheet items by economic sector
are as deiadled below:
(a) Adwvances to customers (Gross)
2007 206
Tshs “00d o Tshs *000 Ve
Public sector - . 9,932,181 3
Agriculture fishing, forestry & hunting 126,972,012 21 98,904,443 4
Finance, insurance & business service 74,527 696 12 27,140,964 7
Mining & dquarrying 3,673,552 1 3,533,959 -
Manufactaring 20,870,088 13 61,486,381 15
Real estate & construction 21,497,556 4 25,579,739 13
Transport & communication 25047 488 4 25438871 13
Trade & commerce 79,218,404 13 49,135,009 13
Tourism, hotels & restsurants 19.991,017 3 11,494 736 3
Electricity, gas and water 67,418,369 11 62,719,916 15
Personal 66,295 967 11 30,218,040 7
Orther 34,173,958 3 3,498 246 1
599,726,107 100 409,132 485 100
(b) Off balance sheet items (Letter of credit, guarantees, traveless cheques, and OFBC)
ne7 2006
Tshs “00@ % Tahs “000 Y
Agriculture fishing, forestry & hunting 1,774 420 2 1,073,132 1
Electricity, gas and water 31,617,631 48 155,937,806 81
Finance, insurance & bosiness service 3,282 185 5 5.ERR11S 3
Real estate & construction 10,245,146 16 9879623 5
Trade & commerce 18,503,673 20 19,701,550 1
65,823,055 100 194,480,266 100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

RELATED' PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the sbility to control the other party or exercise significent
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Advances o customers at 31 December 2007 inchode advences and loans to companies associsted with
Diirectors and key management personnel.

The volumes of related party trangsctions for the year and the outstanding amounts &t the year end ane a8

follows:
Companies assoclated Key management
Commen direetorship with directors personncl
7 2006 207 2006 07

Tshs ‘000  Tsha ‘000 Tshs ‘0080 Tshs “000 Tshs'000  Tsha 000
Loans and sdvances:
Al ] January 12472 5280 4400 1,526,000 614,544 681, DO
Advances during the year
and interest charged 60,000 21,08 - 320,833 2,051,282 41,169
Repeyment during the year ___ (7272)  ({13,826) (4400) (1842433)  (326,157T) (107,625)
At 31 December 5,200 12472 = 4,400 !EH& 614,544

Related party transactions were at arm's length and in the normal course of business, and on terms and
comditions similar to those applicable to other customers with exception of loans and advances to key
management personnel who benefited from preferential rates as applicable to staff.
Compensation of Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel comprise of Board of Directors, Managing Director and head of units who are
reporting directly to the Mansging Director.

Compensations of key management are as follows:-

2007 2

Tshs 008 Tshs"000

Short term emp boyes benefits 1,199,036 1,120,270
Post employment benefits 202,800 188,779
1,401,836 1,309,049

Directors” foes, which are included i the compensation of key management personnel, were Tshs
174,506,260 (2006- Tahs 159,468,750 .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44. RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS
ASSETS 007 2006
Tsh  |Risk Weight | Risk Weight | Tah | Wisk Weight | isk Weight _

Cash 34,257,119 % - 29,992 851 0%

Balance with Bank of

Tamzania

Statutory Minimum Reserve 83,500,000 % - G R00,000 0% -

Current Account 51,672,942 % = 3004, 748 0% -

Balamees with ether Banks 185,838,923 0% ITOET. 78S 175485322 0% 35,097,064

Investment in Dieb i Securities

Governmant Bands 27,920,757 % - 28 R60,010 0% -

Private Bonds 6,373,460 100 B3T3 460 B3E1 405 1004 8381405

Treasury Hills 67672036 L] = 8454, 182 0% -

Treasury Bands 24,834,020 % - 36,580,568 0% -

Loans and Advances

Socured by cash 130,979,244 % -

1" Class banks guarantes 19,796,266 %% =

Secured by others 437,571,300 100t 43T STLA00| 405,771,642 100% A5, 771642

and 1 100% 1 [ 100 9465387

_% a4 5% ﬁ:ﬁ 7,351,550 0% 13,625,7

| Prepai ,A05.30 (1] - 234,774 0% -

Chibor assels 7,268409 100% 7,268 409 ] 1] 100% 7,626,390

Total assels 1,142 669,366 526,215,589 | B98,302938 A79,3T166T

OFF BALANCE SHEET

EXPOSURES

Letter of Credit = ather 6,268,759 0% 1,253,732 11,232 829 0% 1,446,566

wecurity EA15739 0% E415739 24,624 100% 3,624,624

Cuarentees — Dther security 50,796,001 % = | 179,137,054 0% o

LCs + Guaranisas — Secured

by cash 7,533,213 % - 4671467 0% -

Undrewn losns — Secared by

cash

Undrawn loans — Crther 16,323,520 100% 16,323,520 Z02T03TS 100% 20,270,375

BECHTitics

Total o ff balanes sheet items 89,337,252 25093,011 | 210936349 26,341,565

TOTAL 1,232,006,618 351,218,600 | 1,118,239,287 305,713,232

Regulatory Minimum Capital Requirement:

Core Capital 1o Risk Weighted Asset & Off Balimce Shoet Exposure 10%

Total Capital o Risk Welghted Asset & Off Balance Sheed Exposure 12%

Risk Welghted Asset & OFT Balance Sheet Exposure position

| Cuze Capital [ 1 I - ! 1

Total Cupital | 14476771 | [EE | 69567600 14%
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